
 
 

 
 

NOTIFICATION TO ATTEND MEETING OF THE ARTS, CULTURE AND RECREATION SPC 
 

TO BE HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL, DAME STREET, DUBLIN 2. 
 

ON MONDAY 10 JULY 2017 AT 9.15 AM 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
MONDAY 10 JULY 2017

  PAGE 
 
1   Minutes of meeting held on 8th May 2017   

 
3 - 8 

2   Presentation on the National Children's Science Museum Project - Dr. Daniel 
O'Hare.   
 

9 - 32 

3   Presentation on A Playful City - Aaron Copeland   
 

33 - 72 

4   Report and Recommendations from the Luke Kelly Working Group - Ray Yeates, 
City Arts Officer   
 

73 - 76 

5   Report on the delivery of cultural space in the City - GOAL 6 of the Local 
Economic and Community Plan 2016 - 2021 (LECP) - Ray Yeates, City Arts 
Officer   
 

77 - 78 

6   Report on the Implementation of the Cultural Strategy - Ray Yeates, City Arts 
Officer   
 

79 - 82 

7   Report on update of the George Bernard Shaw House - Brendan Teeling, Deputy 
City Librarian   
 

83 - 100 

8   Verbal update on the New City Library at Parnell Square - Brendan Teeling, 
Deputy City Librarian   
 

 

9   Management Update   
 

101 - 
134 

10   Approved Minutes of the Commemorations Sub Committee meeting held 22nd 
March 2017   
 

135 - 
136 

11   Approved Minutes of the Commemorative Naming Committee meeting held 22nd 
March 2017   
 

137 - 
140 

12   Approved Minutes of the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group meeting held 5th April 
2017   
 

141 - 
144 

13   Breviate of Draft Minutes of Dublin City Sports and Wellbeing Partnership 
Advisory Board meeting held 15th May 2017   

145 - 
148 



 

 
14   Breviate of Draft Minutes of the Commemorations Sub Committee meeting held 

17th May 2017   
 

149 - 
150 

15   Breviate of Draft Minutes of the Commemorative Naming Committee meeting held 
17th May 2017   
 

151 - 
154 

16   Breviate of Draft Minutes of the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group meeting held 
28th June 2017   
 

155 - 
158 

17   A.O.B.   
 

 

 



1 
 

 
 

MINUTES OF THE ARTS, CULTURE AND RECREATION SPC MEETING 
 

HELD ON MONDAY 8 MAY 2017 
 

 

 
 

Members: 

Cllr. Rebecca Moynihan (Chair) 

Cllr. Vincent Jackson 

Cllr. Emma Murphy 

Cllr. Greg Kelly  

Cllr. John Lyons 

Cllr. Séan Paul Mahon 

Cllr. Claire Byrne 

Cllr. Anne Feeney 

Cllr. Mary Freehill 

Cllr Claire O’Connor 

Cllr. Gary Gannon 

Cllr Séamas McGrattan 

Maurice Ahern, Irish Sports Council 

Willie White, Dublin Theatre Festival 

Gerry Kerr, National Council for the 

Blind of Ireland 

Elaina Ryan, Children’s Books Ireland 

 

Others Present: 

Cllr. Micheál MacDonncha 

 

Apologies: 

Simon O’Connor Little Musuem of 

Dublin 

Sarah O’Neill, Public Participation 

Network 

Ciara Higgins, Royal Irish Academy of 

Music, 

 

 

Officials present: 

Declan Wallace,  Assistant Chief 

Executive  

Margaret Hayes, Dublin City Librarian 

Leslie Moore, City Parks Superintendent 

Brendan Teeling, Deputy City Librarian, 

Ray Yeates, City Arts Officer 

Jim Beggan, A/Executive Manager 

Ruairí Ó Cuív, Public Art Manager  

Mary Foley, Senior Executive Officer 

Shauna McIntyre, A/Senior Executive 

Officer. 

Iseult Byrne, Project Director, Culture 

Connects 

Jackie O’Reilly, Administrative Officer  

Minutes by Paula Ebbs 

 

 
 
1.  Minutes of meeting held on 13th March 2017 

 
Action:  Agreed 
 

 

Page 3



2 
 

 Cllr. Freehill requested an outline of the plan for the 2018 Good Citizens Awards  
Action: To be brought to the next SPC meeting. 
 

2.  Presentation on Parks Services in the City, Leslie Moore, City Parks 
Superintendent 
 
City Parks Superintendent gave an overview of parks services and projects in the 
city which included: 
 

 The 5 Green Flag Awards 

 Greening of the City 

 Tree pruning 

 Renewing Playgrounds 

 Events in parks 

 Civic Decoration 
 
He also briefed members on the Parks and Landscape Services Strategic Vision 
such as: 
 

 Dublin City Parks Strategy (to be completed in 2017) 

 Dublin City Biodiversity Action Plan 2015 - 2020 

 Dublin City Invasive Species Action Plan 2016 - 2020 

 Dublin City Tree Strategy 2016 - 2020 

 Mountjoy Square Conservation Plan and Historic Landscape Study 

 Public Realm Masterplan for the City – there is a 5 year programme in 
place with 2 subsequent phases which will see the whole City Centre re-
surfaced which will bring opportunities for greening within that – Parks 
services is a key partner in the Public Realm Plan 

 Dublin Bay Partnership – which is a UNESCO designation, a partnership 
with Fingal, DunLaoghaire/Rathdown, National Parks and Wildlife Services 
and Dublin Port Company 
 

Management informed members of the ongoing Capital Projects in the city such 
as: 

 All weather pitches i.e. Brickfield Park, St. Anne’s Park in Kilbarrack and 
Belmayne which are due to open in the coming weeks. 

 A new Skatepark in Ballyfermot which is going to construction this year 

 The Discovery Centre in Dublin Bay, which is at feasibility stage and will 
be the largest project over the next couple of years. 

 
 
Action: Welcomed and Noted.  

Bring the Dublin City Parks Strategy to SPC when complete.  Circulate 
most recent draft to members. 

 

 

3.  Verbal update on the New City Library at Parnell Square - Margaret Hayes, 
Dublin City Librarian 
 
The City Librarian informed the Committee that site investigations works are now 
coming to a conclusion and in parallel at the Dublin City Gallery The Hugh Lane 
another piece of architectural investigation work has being ongoing.   
This is an optimisation study which has been looking at the internal spaces of the 
Gallery and examining issues such as logistics, egress for delivery in conjunction 
with implications for the project and the potential for shared spaces such as 
lecture rooms education rooms etc. that piece of work has been concluded and 
will be taken into account in the final design. 

 

Page 4



3 
 

 
Members requested an update on an elected representative sitting on the Board 
of the Parnell Square Foundation and also an update on funding for the project. 
 
Management stated that at the next meeting of the Board, a proposal to put 
forward, that Cllr Rebecca Moynihan, Chairperson of this SPC should sit on that 
Board.  
 
Management informed members that funding was still not finalised. A note has 
gone to the EU seeking guidance in terms of public procurement and whether or 
not it would apply in this case because of the innovative funding systems that 
have been put in place.  

4.  Report on the Implementation of the Cultural Strategy - Ray Yeates, City 
Arts Officer 
 
The City Arts Officer presented his report to the members. 
 
Action:  Welcomed and Noted. 
 
Cllr Freehill asked for an update on the George Bernard Shaw House. 
 
Management stated that a number of site meetings have taken place.  Two issues 
that need to be examined in more detail before any final determinations are made 
are, the conditions in the lease relating to the ownership and operation of the 
house, and the condition of the house.  A team of professionals within the City 
Council is examining these issues to ascertain what could possibly be done and 
what is practical and allowable within the terms of the lease. 
 
Action: Bring a set of recommendations and proposals to a future SPC 
 

 

5.  Revised Draft Policy Document for Commemorative Naming of 
Infrastructure and Provision of Monuments, Memorials and Plaques - 
Brendan Teeling, Deputy City Librarian 
 
Management informed the Committee that 17 changes were made to the revised 
version of the policy document   The main thrust of the review has been to tighten 
up some of the language and to take account of some issues that have arisen 
over the years, i.e. practical things like how people apply and how decisions may 
be reached on the basis of applications made.  The most substantive change, 
which is now Section 18 of the document, deals with the erection of 
commemorative plaques.  Changes were introduced because, subsequent to the 
adoption of the policy, an official Commemorative Plaques Scheme was 
introduced.  The document was amended to take account of the new plaque 
scheme.  The other main addition was the section that deals with Appeals 
(Section 21).  There was no Appeals Section in the original document.  Appeals 
will be considered only where a claim is made that the Commemorative Naming 
Committee’s consideration of a proposal was procedurally unfair, unreasonable or 
inadequate.   
 
This revised policy document was agreed by the Commemorative Naming 
Committee on 22nd March 2017. 
 
Following discussions, members agreed, that section 11 of the policy document 
(Public Consultation)  be amended to clarify that “The Commemorative Naming 
Committee will seek comment on proposals for the naming of major infrastructure 
/ monuments / statues via the Area Offices / Area Committees, and will engage 
public comment.”  

 

Page 5



4 
 

 
Action: Amend Policy Document to reflect this amendment.  Put forward to the    

full City Council for adoption. 
 

6. Report on the restructuring of Sports Development Officers in the City - 
Shauna McIntyre A/Senior Executive Officer 
 
Management presented the report to members.  Following discussions it was 
agreed to review the restructure of Sports Officers after 1 year. 
 
Action:  Review this structure after 1 year.  Circulate to members a list of Sports 

Officers in their relevant areas. 
 

 

7.  Management Update 
 
Action:  Report Noted 
 
Cllr McGrattan enquired if the total number of filming applications (64) could be 
compared to other period of times to show if there is an increase / decrease in 
applications. 
 
Action: Bring report to next SPC  
 
Cllr McGrattan enquired about the timeline for the play facilities for Mount Bernard 
Park 
 
Action: Reply to the Councillor directly  
 

 

8.  Approved Minutes of the Commemorations Sub Committee meeting held 
18th January 2017 
 
Action:  Agreed 
 

 

9.  Approved Minutes of the Commemorative Naming Committee meeting held 
18th January 2017 
 
Action:  Agreed 
 

 

10.  Approved Minutes of the Arts and Cultural Advisory Committee meeting 
held 1st February 2017 
 
Action:  Agreed 
 

 

11.  Breviate of Draft Minutes of the Commemorations Sub Committee meeting 
held 22nd March 2017 
 
Action:  Noted. 
 

 

12.  Breviate of Draft Minutes of the Commemorative Naming Committee 
meeting held 22nd March 2017 
 
Action:  Noted 
 

 

13.  Breviate of Draft Minutes of the Arts and Cultural Advisory Committee 
meeting held on 5th April 2017 
 
 

     

Page 6



5 
 

Cllr Micheál MacDonncha, Chairperson of the Commemorative Naming 
Committee, referred to the Minutes of the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group 
regarding the proposed memorial of Liam Mellows in Liam Mellows Park, Finglas.  
He expressed the concerns of the Liam Mellows Committee regarding the 
possible delay in progressing this project until the Government Advisory Group for 
the Decade of Commemorations prepares a policy document on how the War of 
Independence and Civil War should be commemorated.  
 
The Public Art Manager stated that the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group would 
like to work with the Committee and local groups to fulfil the best possible artwork. 
 Cllr MacDonncha suggested that the Committee make a presentation to the next 
SPC meeting. 
 
Action:  Cllr MacDonncha to meet with the Chairperson of the Arts and Cultural 

Advisory Group, Cllr Aine Clancy,  Ray Yeates, City Arts Officer and 
Ruairi O’Cuiv, Public Art Manager, to discuss the way forward for this 
project. 

             The Liam Mellows Memorial Committee to make a presentation to the 
next SPC. 

 
14.  A.O.B. 

 
There was no business under A.O.B. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
Deputy Lord Mayor Rebecca Moynihan 
Chairperson 
Monday 8 May 2017 
 
 
 

Page 7





 

 

FRONT PAGE.pdf 1 01/06/2015 12:16 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Exploration Station - The National Interactive 
Science Centre 

C 

M 

Y 

CM 

MY 

CY 

CMY 

K 

 

P
age 9



 

 
PAGE 1.pdf 1 01/06/2015 12:18 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

“Ireland is alone among the member-states 
of the European Unionin not having a 

major 
science centre. This distinction tends to 
con rm an image of Ireland as having a 
culture predominantly or exclusively de 

ned in terms of archaeological or mythical 
heritage, music and literature and as 

having little or no interest or role in, or 
support for, science, 

engineering and technology. In view of the 
strategic aims which the government has 
set itself, and to which the major social 
and institutional interests subscribe, of 

developing Ireland as a knowledge-based 
economy 

and ‘information society’, this image needs 
correction.” 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Irish Council for Science Technology and Innovation, 2000 
 

C 

M 

Y 

CM 

MY 

CY 

CMY 

K 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 10



 

 

page 2a.pdf 1 01/06/2015 12:23 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Summary 

C 

M 

Y 

CM 

MY 

CY 

CMY 

K 

 

P
age 11



 

 
PAGE 2.pdf 1 01/06/2015 12:18 

 

 

Summary 
Exploration Station will be the first such science centre in the Republic of Ireland. Exploration 
Station will target primarily children from 4 to 15, but also families, tourists and school groups, 
including teachers. 

 

It projects an average annual attendance in excess of 150,000; it will have a particular focus on 

ensuring ready access for people from educationally disadvantaged backgrounds.Though it will be 
aimed primarily at children, adults will derive benefit from experiencing its innovative exhibits. 

 

Centres of this kind exist in scores of countries in all continents and are the fastest-growing type of 
museum worldwide. Ireland stands out in the international community in not having such a 
resource. 

 

The experience of visiting will provide open-ended opportunities for making discoveries at the 
visitor’s own pace.The interactive exhibits and programmes will be complementary to the school 
curriculum and will be a year-round resource for informal learning. 

 

Creating, maintaining and operating a world-class institution of this type is a challenging prospect. 
It cannot be supported by trading income alone, as extensive international experience in the 
operation of such centres demonstrates. It requires a combination of income from government 
and private donors as well as substantial trading income. 

 
Exploration Station is scheduled to open in late 2020 at a location in Dublin city centre provided 
and refurbished by the government. 

 

It will be a place where children's natural curiosity, imagination and creativity are stimulated as 
they are encouraged to explore and discover. Exploration Station will help young people develop 
the skills neces- sary in tomorrow’s world: critical thinking skills, ability to ask questions, 
willingness to take risks, ability to work in teams and share knowledge, and the development of 
creative, innovative approaches to solving problems. It will encourage young people to consider 
studies and careers in science and technology. 

 

Exploration Station will provide unique interdisciplinary exhibits and programmes, using leading- 
edge technology and on topics that relate to the school science curricula and beyond. It will be a 
model for the next generation of interactive museums, learning from the experience of the 
hundreds of science centres in Europe and beyond. 

 

Exploration Station will develop relationships with American and European children’s museums 
and science centres, building international networks for travelling exhibits and other sharing 
initiatives. 

 

Exploration Station will be housed in a well-located historic building, the north wing of the National 
Concert Hall on Earlsfort Terrace, in Dublin’s city centre, close to many other cultural 
institutions.The building will be reconfigured to accommodate learner-focused exhibitions and 
provide an outstanding and appealing resource for Irish families, educators, and visitors to 
Dublin.An award-winning team led by Ciaran O’Connor, State Architect, is currently designing the 
remodelling of the building. 

 

Exploration Station will have capital costs of approximately €50 million, of which €29 million is 
being provided by government, through the provision of the building (€12 million) and its redesign 
and refurbish- ment (€17 million).A Planetarium will cost €2 million and the design.The 
construction of other installa- tions are estimated at €15 million.Annual exhibit renewals will cost 
€4 million over the first ten-year period of operation from 2020.Exploration Station will have 
annual operating costs at €3.8 million in a steady-state situation, when revenue will be comprised 

                          of trading income (57%) and government support (43%); this ratio corresponds with the typical  
public support for science centres in Europe. 

C 

M 

Y 

CM 

MY 

CY 

CMY 

K 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 12



 

 
page 3a.pdf 1 01/06/2015 12:24 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Backgrou 
nd 

C 

M 

Y 

CM 

MY 

CY 

CMY 

K 

 

P
age 13



 

 
PAGE 3.pdf 1 01/06/2015 12:18 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Background 

Exploration Station was established in the 1990s to promote the development, in 
collaboration with government, of a National Interactive Science Centre. It was born 
out of the recognition that stimulating public interest in scientific matters was essential 
to Ireland’s future performance as an economy and society.The people who came 
together to promote this initiative had diverse backgrounds, including formal and 
informal education, science, policy, communication and philanthropy.They saw that 
our future depends critically on science and technology and they wanted to help 
ensure that increasing numbers of young people would choose to study and pursue 
careers in these areas.The need to encourage creative thinking and innovation in our 
young generation was also an objective.We considered that Ireland needed, at a 
national level, a very visible initiative to promote awareness of science, to excite 
young people with its possibilities and to provide an opportunity for hands-on 
involvement with practical scientific projects. A National Interactive Science Centre 
represents such an initiative. 

 
 

Centres of this kind exist in all other developed countries and in very many developing 
countries. Ireland is the only modern economy without such a centre and proposals to 
fill this gap have been made over more than two decades by government advisory 
bodies, citizen organisations and prominent individuals. 
Exploration Station was formally approved by government in the 2000s for 
construction and operation through a public-private partnership but it was a casualty 
of the economic crisis, particularly as it affected the property and construction 
industries. 

 
 

In the present phase, Exploration Station has been boosted by the designation in 2013 
of state-owned premises for a science centre and a commitment from government to 
refurbish these premises for that purpose. 

 
 

Exploration Station:The National Interactive Science Centre aims to bridge the gap 
between formal and informal education, to promote science learning at all levels. It 
aims to assist in ensuring that science not only holds a central place in school curricula 
but is a focus of creative problem-solving and learning-by-do- ing. Through exhibitions, 
workshops and other activities, Exploration Station aims to integrate experiential 
learning and support materials provided by scientists and educators into a 
comprehensive learning resource for the public. 

 
 

Exploration Station will take its place alongside other cultural institutions with related 
aims and audiences, including some also in Dublin city centre, such as the Natural 
History Museum and Science Gallery. Explo- ration Station will collaborate with these 
institutions to minimise avoidable overlaps and maximise poten- tial synergies. 

C 

M 

 
 

 
Y 

 
CM 

MY 

CY 

CMY 

K 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 14



 

 
page 8a.pdf 1 07/06/2015 22:20 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibits 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 15



 

 
PAGE 8.pdf 1 07/06/2015 22:21 

 

 

Exhibits 

Exploration Station will have over 200 purpose-built exhibits allowing visitors to explore, 
investigate and discover in an informal way and at their own pace and level.The broad 
themes running across the exhibitions and activities reflect topics that are within the 
national science curriculum but are also of high general interest, and open up possibilities 
for exploring the science in the world around us, including, for example, in sport and 
music. 

 

The exhibits are designed to be open-ended with visitors interacting with them in a variety 
of ways including, making and recording measurements, experimenting with a range of 
inputs and following up visits to the centre with access to their acquired data. 

 

In some exhibits, visitors will use their own bodies to experience the concepts being 
demonstrated, setting them in motion directly. In many exhibits a range of themes can be 
explored; the exhibits on the human body works can also be used to explore forces and 
movement. In the Explore Earth section water a tread-mill exhibit can be a means to look 
at how one form of energy can be converted to other forms, while also introducing ideas 
around sustainable energy sources. 

 

There is an emphasis throughout on problem-solving and on designing and making. 
Detailed curriculum support notes and resources on all the exhibits will be developed for 
use by teachers and to support further activities. 

 
 
 

C 

M 

Y 

CM 

MY 

CY 

CMY 

K 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 16



 

 
page 5a.pdf 1 01/06/2015 12:24 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Facilities, 

 

 

    

C 

M 

Y 

CM 

MY 

CY 

CMY 

K 

 

P
age 17



 

 
PAGE 5.pdf 1 01/06/2015 12:19 

 

 

 

 

Faciliti 
es, 

The designated building, which formerly housed lecture rooms and other facilities of 
University College Dublin, are being redesigned to provide, among other elements: 

 

• Flexible programme spaces, so that there will always be new experiences to 
• discover with every visit A Temporary Exhibit Gallery that will change exhibits 
• every six months 
• A Planetarium incorporating a 15-metre dome and seating for 200. A 
• Demonstration Workshop space 
• A Science Show theatre 
• A School Showcase laboratory 
• A Gallery designed especially for children under five and their parents/caregivers 
• A Café and a Gift Shop 

A corporate space for hire by business for events, promotions and training days. 

The allocation of exhibit space, programme support space and amenity spaces was 
developed after extensive research with other child-centred facilities.The remainder of 
the building will be allocated for conference use, general public space, offices, storage 
and mechanical room, toilets, coat room/locker space and a lobby/orien- tation area. 
The centre will be designed for full access for the disabled visitor. 

 
 

C 

M 

Y 

CM 

MY 

CY 

CMY 

K 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 18



 

 
page 6a.pdf 1 01/06/2015 12:27 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Programmes 
 

 

  

 

C 

M 

Y 

CM 

MY 

CY 

CMY 

K 

 

P
age 19



 

 
PAGE 6.pdf 1 01/06/2015 12:20 

 

 
 
 

 
Programmes 

 
 

 

The programmes and activities in Exploration Station will be 
facilitated through: 
• Specially trained ‘Explorers’ who will provide interactive demonstrations 

and short theatre presentations to enhance exhibitions throughout the 
day; 

• Classes, workshops and periodic special events for visitors on the weekends and 
during summer and other holidays; 

 

• Outreach programmes to fund visits by 
disadvantaged children; 

• Special programmes and ‘Kits on Loan’ to take elements of exhibits to 
different parts of Ireland; 

• Classes and networking opportunities for parents and 
grandparents; 

• Transition-Year ‘Exploration Placements’ for students 
aged 14-15. 

C 

M 

Y 

CM 

MY 

CY 

CMY 

K 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 20



 

 
Page 7a.pdf 1 01/06/2015 12:28 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Themes 

 

 

    

C 

M 

Y 

CM 

MY 

CY 

CMY 

K 

 

P
age 21



 

 
PAGE 7.pdf 1 01/06/2015 12:20 

 

 

 

 

 

Themes 

The exhibits will be organised around several key themes: 

 
Explore Ourselves 

The human body, how it works, how we experience forces and how we interact with 
the world around us through our senses 

 
Explore Our Earth 

What shapes our world? Gravity, earth’s structure, global circulation of air, water 
and living interactions 

 
Explore Our Technology 

Engineering, robotics, construction, traffic and transport, codes and computer, and 
more 

 
Explore Our Frontiers 

Astronomy and other curiosity-driven science; scientific research and heritage in 
Ireland 

 
Explore More 

Augmented reality; information on visitors’ experiences with exhibits connecting to 
social media. 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

C 

M 

Y 

CM 

MY 

CY 

CMY 

K 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 22



 

 

 

Exibi 
ts 

P
age 23



 

 
PAGE 8.pdf 1 01/06/2015 12:20 

 

 

Exibits 

Exploration Station will have over 200 purpose-built exhibits allowing visitors to explore, 
investigate and discover in an informal way and at their own pace and level.The broad 
themes running across the exhibitions and activities reflect topics that are within the 
national science curriculum but are also of high general interest, and open up possibilities 
for exploring the science in the world around us, including, for example, in sport and 
music. 

 

The exhibits are designed to be open-ended with visitors interacting with them in a variety 
of ways including, making and recording measurements, experimenting with a range of 
inputs and following up visits to the centre with access to their acquired data. 

 

In some exhibits, visitors will use their own bodies to experience the concepts being 
demonstrated, setting them in motion directly. In many exhibits a range of themes can be 
explored; the exhibits on the human body works can also be used to explore forces and 
movement. In the Explore Earth section water a tread-mill exhibit can be a means to look 
at how one form of energy can be converted to other forms, while also introducing ideas 
around sustainable energy sources. 

 

There is an emphasis throughout on problem-solving and on designing and making. 
Detailed curriculum support notes and resources on all the exhibits will be developed for 
use by teachers and to support further activities. 

 
 
 

C 

M 

Y 

CM 

MY 

CY 

CMY 

K 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 24



 

 
page 9a.pdf 1 01/06/2015 12:32 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Explore 
Together 

 

 

  

 

C 

M 

Y 

CM 

MY 

CY 

CMY 

K 

 

P
age 25



 

 
PAGE 9.pdf 1 01/06/2015 12:21 

 

 
 
 

Explore Together 
 

The theme that cuts across all topic areas. It will be represented particularly in spaces for 
group work and for shows: 

 

1.A state of the art digital planetarium – a first for Ireland, simulating travel through 
planets, comets, sun, stars, galaxies and black holes, the experience of space-flight, and 
digging into the Earth’s structure, or swimming through its oceans through specially 
produced 3-D shows; the 200-seat planetarium will also make a unique venue for 
corporate use, particularly for events such as high-tech product launches; 

 

2.A science show theatre – spaces for shows with a high level of audience participation 
and featuring skilled science communicators who bring science to life, also available for 
drama performances, debates and talks; 

 

3.A showcase laboratory for school groups coupled with a teachers’ support centre for 
professional develop- ment; many schools in Ireland are not in a position to carry out high- 
level technical experiments, yet this type of experimental science is key to inspiring 
interest in science; 

 
•A less formal demonstration and exploration space within the main exhibition area where 
trained staff will be available to help visitors in fun activities; 

 

•Temporary exhibition space that can accommodate a range of travelling exhibitions 
exploring topical issues that can attract considerable public interest and a high level of 
repeat visits. 

 
 

. 

. 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

C 

M 

Y 

CM 

MY 

CY 

CMY 

K 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 26



 

 
page 10a.pdf 1 01/06/2015 12:35 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Audiences 

 
 
 

    

C 

M 

Y 

CM 

MY 

CY 

CMY 

K 

 

P
age 27



 

 
PAGE 10.pdf 1 01/06/2015 12:21 

 

 
 
 

 

Audiences 
 

 

Exploration Station has children aged 4-15 as its primary target audience, both as 
members of visiting school groups and as members of families coming with their parents, 
siblings, grand-parents and other care-givers. 
Within this primary target group we identify transition-year students, aged 14-15, as a 
cohort with particular requirements as they begin to formulate choices about future 
education and careers. 

 
 

Beyond the primary target audience we also identify the following as target groups 
requiring specific attention: Families - parents, grandparents and other care-givers of 
children-visitors 
Teachers - pre-school, primary school, post-primary school and transition-year teachers 
Tourists - individuals, couples and families visiting Ireland or visiting Dublin from 
elsewhere in the country 

 

 

From the experience of science centres elsewhere, we can anticipate that Exploration 
Station will also attract members of other groups, including people curious about 
developments in science, and who wish to partici- pate in debates, talks and other events. 

 
 

 
Admission charges in the opening year, 2020, will 
average €13. 

Attendance 
Figures 

Exploration Station is projected to have an annual attendance of about 
150,000.This was estimated taking into account comparisons with existing 
Dublin attractions, comparisons with similar institu- tions elsewhere, and 
demographic analysis. For example, total attendance at the National Concert 
Hall, adjoining the premises of Exploration Station, was over 315,000 in 2013 
and is projected to increase to more than 400,000 with the addition of their 500- 
seat concert hall. In Boston, the Museum of Science, with over 1.5 million 
visitors, ranks as the top attraction in the city and the Museum of Children has a 
further 500,000-plus visitors. 

 
 

  

C 

M 

Y 

CM 

MY 

CY 

CMY 

K 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 28



 

 
page 11a.pdf 1 01/06/2015 12:41 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Funding 
Requirements 

C 

M 

Y 

CM 

MY 

CY 

CMY 

K 

 

P
age 29



 

 
PAGE 11.pdf 1 01/06/2015 12:21 

 

 

Funding Requirements 

The government, through the Office of Public Works, will provide the exhibit-ready 
facility at an estimated total cost of some €29 million - €12 million for the building, and 
€17 million for its refurbishment.The Office of Public Works’ staff time is not included in 
these figures but we estimate it at some €2 million. 

 

The construction will be to the highest standards and consistent with the objective of 
building a world-class children’s science centre.The cost of exhibit design, construction 
and renewal, and building fit out will total 
€15 million; the provision and equipping of the Planetarium is estimated at €2m.Annual 
exhibit renewal over the first ten years will total €4 million. 

 

A significant fund-raising campaign to launch Exploration Station will be put in place to 
raise private funds for exhibit design, exhibit fabrication, renewals and launch costs. 

 

Typically, trading income at 46% makes up the largest single portion of operating 
revenue.The Association of Science and Technology Centres surveyed its members 
world-wide to determine the breakdown of revenue sources and found: 

Source Trading Government Privat 
e 

All respondents 46.0 26.8 27.3 

U.S. 46.0 24.1 29.6 

Other countries 45.8 38.9 16.2 

(As a Percentage of total income). 

 

Exploration Station expects to generate its income from the 
following sources in its sixth year of operation: 

 

 Trading Government Privat 
e 

Exploration 
Station 

50 39 11 

Trading income will consist of entrance fees, membership fees, café/retail income, 
and function rental. 

 

. 

. 

C 

M 

Y 

CM 

MY 

CY 

CMY 

K 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 30



 

 
page 12a.pdf 1 01/06/2015 12:42 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exploration Station 
Board 

C 

M 

Y 

CM 

MY 

CY 

CMY 

K 

 

P
age 31



 

 
PAGE 12.pdf 1 01/06/2015 12:22 

 

 
 
 

Exploration Station 
Board 

 

 

Dr. Daniel O’Hare, Board Chair: President Emeritus, Dublin City 
University, 

 

Michael M. Collins, Deputy Chair: Senior 
Counsel 

 

Ali Hewson:Volunteer for fund-raising and awareness campaigns, particularly the 
Chernobyl Children’s Charity, and Anti-Nuclear organizations 

 

Dr. Áine Hyland: Chair, Exploration Station National Advisory Committee; former Vice- 
President, Universi- ty College Cork 

 

Michael O’Doherty: Former State Architect, Office of 
Public Works 

 

Peter Brabazon (Designate by the Minister of Jobs Enterprise and Innovation): former 
Director, Discover Science and Engineering Programme 

 

Mindy Byrns O’Brien, Secretary of the Board: Founding board member, 
environmental attorney 

 
Frank Doonan: CEO, ERA 
Ireland 
Dr. Ian Hughes: Senior Policy Advisor, Department of Jobs, Enterprise 
and Innovation 

 
Cathy Moore: Journalism lecturer at Dublin City University. Former current affairs 
presenter and foreign reporter (TV and radio). 

 
 

Brian Redmond,Treasurer: Former Partner, Ernst and Young 

 
 

Executive Director: Seamus Bannon: Former Department Manager,Trade & Innovation, 
Forfas. 

“[Ireland] is the only member-state of 
the European Union not to have a major 
science centre. This is sending the wrong 

message to the wider world, which is 
used to viewing our culture as typically 

de ned by archaeological, mythical, 
musical and literary heritage. Granted, 
all of these things are a very important 
part of what we are, and have been, but 
Ireland also has a ne scienti c heritage 

that is largely unknown and 
unappreciated by the general public.” 
Dr William Reville, Irish Times, 2001. 

C 

M 

Y 

CM 

MY 

CY 

CMY 

K 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 32



A PROJECT ON CREATIVE, PLAYFUL & INCLUSIVE CITIES 

P
age 33



Our Vision

P
age 34



 

P
age 35



We believe in a city that is     shaped 
to fit the people    who live in it - 

that engages people of all ages and 
abilities

We want to raise awareness 
about the serious business of play 
and continue to grow the project year 

on year

P
age 36



Our Aim

P
age 37



 ‘A Playful City’, will consult with children & adults of all ages, 

discuss play in an international context and all together create 
simple and high impact interventions across the city. 

P
age 38



https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Tm1lqeyRGjc

P
age 39

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Tm1lqeyRGjc


P
age 40



define 
 your 

 desired  
outcomes

Harvest  
and  

analyse  
insights

Brainstorm  
opportunities

Bring our shared 
vision to  

life

What does play 
look like?

P
age 41



P
age 42



P
age 43



x

Granby park, Dublin  

P
age 44



x

Charlotte Ammundsens Square, Copenhagen   
by 1:1 Landskab

P
age 45



x

Belgian School grounds 

P
age 46



x

Folly for a Flyover by assemble collective 

P
age 47



x

Everyday Pœms for City Sidewalk, ST PAUL, MINNESOTA

P
age 48



x

Quad at King’s College London by matheson marcault

P
age 49



x

Spatial Stories: An exploration of young people’s everyday experience of public 

P
age 50



x

Saint Mary’s Churchyard Park, London  
by Martha Schwartz Partners

P
age 51



x

BY florian riviere

P
age 52



x

baltic street adventure playground by assemble collective 

P
age 53



x

street feast 

P
age 54



x

PLAY_LAND by Carve Achitects

P
age 55



x

Imagination playground in a box by rockwell group

P
age 56



x

Immaculate conception school, new york city by Katie winter architecture/bothwell site design

P
age 57



x

Mullerpier Playground, Rotterdam, Netherlands by Bekkering Adams Architecten

P
age 58



x

A
sm

a
c
a
ti Sh

o
ppin

g
 C

en
ter by

 Ta
ba

n
lio

g
lu

 A
rc

h
itec

ts 

P
age 59



Our Plan

P
age 60



xdefine 
 your 

 desired  
outcomes

Harvest  
and  

analyse  
insights

Brainstorm  
opportunities

Bring our shared 
vision to  

life

City-wide 
Consultations

International
Conference

Design 
Hackathon

City-wide 
Interventions

A Playful City

P
age 61



City Wide Consultations

Creatively engaging a young audience to find out 
what play means to them, how and where they 

like to play and incorporating this into the 
following steps of the project.

P
age 62



P
age 63



P
age 64



Joe Caslin 
DUDA 
Emily Robyn Archer 
Millie Egan 
Claire Faithorn 
Michelle Considine 
Zie Kirk 
Sharon Greene

Joe Caslin

P
age 65



P
age 66



International Conference

An international conference in Dublin City with a 
host of inspirational speakers, diverse mix of 
attendees of all ages to discuss the serious 

business of play

P
age 67



Elger Blitz 
Senior Designer 
Carve Architects 

Marguerite Hunter Blair 
Director 

Play Scotland 

Robert Kennedy 
Lead Play Worker 

Baltic St Playground 

Trevor Smyth 
Facilities Manager 

Google HQ 

Dr Jackie Bourke 
Rights Advocate 

playtime.ie 

Eduardo Santander 
CEO 

European  
Travel Commission 

Adrian Voice OBE 
President 

European Network  
for Child Friendly Cities

Amica Dall 
Co Founder 

Assemble Collective

CONFIRMED 

P
age 68



Design Hackathon

This is an opportunity to 
engage attendees in an 
exciting design thinking 

hackathon for our playful 
interventions. With 

diversity, creativity and 
the right open minded 
space -  innovation can 

happen. 

P
age 69



City-Wide Interventions

The culmination of our 
consultations, and design 
hackathon will be a series 

of playful interventions 
that will be scattered 
throughout the city - 

acting as urban 
acupuncture for the 

spaces between spaces.

P
age 70



xdefine 
 your 

 desired  
outcomes

Harvest  
and  

analyse  
insights

Brainstorm  
opportunities

Bring our shared 
vision to  

life

Partners

P
age 71



xdefine 
 your 

 desired  
outcomes

Harvest  
and  

analyse  
insights

Brainstorm  
opportunities

Bring our shared 
vision to  

life

This shared vision brought us together - 
we are Connect the Dots, a start-up 
that specialises in engaging 
stakeholders around topics that matter, 
and Upon a Tree, masters in designing 
sustainable play spaces for children 
and adults. 

playfulcity@gmail.com

Contact

P
age 72

https://l.facebook.com/l.php?u=http://www.connectthedots.ie/&h=ATMPYFREG3CFnMS-2Uve4dZlXksORnK9RjPwiiE0TQP-RaUVS60fSbVS446-OTSyYlISkViUI_9TlS0nO5mv-OQt9PRoW6CKvvBeXQT3jvzQfp_BD6fAozHQITk63_jvzdZjUgYz&s=1
https://l.facebook.com/l.php?u=http://www.connectthedots.ie/&h=ATMPYFREG3CFnMS-2Uve4dZlXksORnK9RjPwiiE0TQP-RaUVS60fSbVS446-OTSyYlISkViUI_9TlS0nO5mv-OQt9PRoW6CKvvBeXQT3jvzQfp_BD6fAozHQITk63_jvzdZjUgYz&s=1
https://l.facebook.com/l.php?u=http://www.uponatree.ie/&h=ATPZ8SG16mHPA5tFihQIkWui0Nj8iz7m2-aKpegsh0ZezOjHjv21X3da5WJqUFlZzhWA-wkGBkiei6niCo4Rb0QtD4kMhqy5xtCEa0Uchrg5zcm_sKxuOzR3-xByZ9ZMT5aRqNG0&s=1
https://l.facebook.com/l.php?u=http://www.uponatree.ie/&h=ATPZ8SG16mHPA5tFihQIkWui0Nj8iz7m2-aKpegsh0ZezOjHjv21X3da5WJqUFlZzhWA-wkGBkiei6niCo4Rb0QtD4kMhqy5xtCEa0Uchrg5zcm_sKxuOzR3-xByZ9ZMT5aRqNG0&s=1
mailto:playfulcity@gmail.com


 

 

 

 

Report to Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC 
 

10th July 2017 
 

Item No. 4 
 

 

Report and Recommendations of the Luke Kelly Working Group 

Introduction 
The Luke Kelly Working Group was established to consider the complex issues arising out of 
the selection of a proposal by artist Vera Klute of a sculpture of Luke Kelly (2015) and the 
subsequent offer to the city of a completed sculpture of Luke Kelly by artist John Coll (2016) 
commissioned by a private citizen Gerry Hunt.  The Working Group was composed of Cllr 
Áine Clancy (Chair and Chair of the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group), Cllr Rebecca 
Moynihan (Chair of the SPC for Arts, Culture and Recreation) Ray Yeates (City Arts Officer), 
Ruairí Ó Cuív (Public Art Manager), Róisín Lonergan (Community Representative, Public 
Participation Network) and Anna O’Sullivan (external Art Expert and Director of the Butler 
Gallery, Kilkenny). 
 
Background 
In 2004, Dublin City Council passed a motion proposed by Cllr Christy Burke that a statue of 
Luke Kelly be commissioned for the city.   As Dublin City Council did not have the required 
funding for such a major commission, the Dublin Dockland Development Authority made a 
commitment to put €80,000 towards the project for the commissioning of a sculpture of Luke 
Kelly to be located in the north inner city docklands area.  However, with the collapse of the 
economy in 2008 the project did not proceed.    
 
When appointed Lord Mayor in June 2014, Cllr Christy Burke announced that one of his key 
objectives for the year was to commission the statue of Luke Kelly and to this end the Public 
Art Manager and Administrative Officer in Culture, Recreation and  Economic Services were 
assigned to work on this project.   In view of the one year term of office as Lord Mayor it was 
proposed that a limited competition be held to expedite the commission.   A long list of artists 
(28 artists) was compiled with nominations from Fire Station Studios (Dublin), National 
Sculpture Factory (Cork) and Leitrim Sculpture Centre as well as nominations by Dublin City 
Council.  A short-list of five artists was selected by a panel of internal and external art 
experts.  The brief was drawn up in agreement with the Lord Mayor and approved by the 
Arts and Cultural Advisory Group.  At a final selection meeting chaired by the Lord Mayor in 
the Mansion House, the proposal by Vera Klute was unanimously selected.  This proposal is 
for a 1.8 metre high bust of Luke Kelly to be located in Luke Kelly Park along the banks of 
the Royal Canal near the Convention Centre Dublin, which is also near the place of birth of 
Luke Kelly.  
 
Proposed donation of a statue of Luke Kelly by John Coll to be gifted by Gerry Hunt 
Gerry Hunt, a private individual, on his own initiative commissioned a statue of Luke Kelly by 
artist John Coll.  The statue is of a seated Luke Kelly singing and playing a banjo.  Gerry 
Hunt now wishes to donate the statue to Dublin City Council and has made a formal 
proposal in this regard.  He does not have a specific location in mind other than that he 
would prefer ‘a south city centre location’.  Gerry Hunt has funded the costs of sculpture and 
Dublin City Council would have to pay for the costs of foundations, plinth and installation.  
 

Page 73



Terms of Reference 
The City Arts Officer Ray Yeates presented proposed Terms of Reference to the SPC for 
Arts, Culture and Recreation and they were unanimously endorsed.  These included meeting 
with both artists, the Kelly family, and public consultation.  
 
Actions 
The Working Group met with the following people on the 25th May, 2017. 
 
Vera Klute, the artist selected through the Dublin City Council Process.   
The Artist presented her proposal including, the maquette, visual images, and samples of 
stone and copper wire.  Her written report set out the concept and technical issues, scale 
and location, materials, process, health and safety, maintenance and durability, time 
schedule and budget.   She related how she was inspired by Luke Kelly as a subject for the 
sculpture and how she came to the idea of the large portrait of him singing as revealing the 
intensity, emotion and energy of the singer.  The contemporary nature of the architecture 
and the site (specified in the brief) also contributed to her decision to design the large scale 
portrait.   She explained how the limestone would add colour and variegation to the face 
which the white wax of the maquette does not have.  She also described in detail the whole 
process from the digitalisation of the maquette to the initial outline carving taking place in 
Belgium using CNC scanning and computer technology and how the work would be returned 
to Dublin where she would work for several months with a stone mason and other 
technicians to do the detailed stone carving and the bending, patination and lacquering of 
the copper wire for the hair, etc.    
 
Gerry Hunt (private commissioner of the statue) and artist John Coll 
Gerry Hunt explained how he had first met Luke Kelly at a music session in Co Clare in the 
1960s and how he himself as a folksinger had done sessions with Des Geraghty and Jimmy 
Kelly (Luke Kelly’s brother).  He explained how he had entirely at his own initiative 
commissioned John Coll (sculptor of the Patrick Kavanagh and Brendan Behan statues) to 
create a statue of Luke Kelly, and having done this he wanted to donate it to the City.  He 
also stated that he had not really thought about process and procedure in relation to 
donating it to the city.  He was happy to donate it to the city and that it would require a plinth 
(45 cm high) but that this could not be designed until a location was identified.  He 
suggested that a suitable location would be in the south city in the Grafton Street area.  He 
emphasised how he never intended to scupper the chances of a younger artist and how he 
thought that the other proposal was in its own terms excellent and with both being very 
different he thought that both should be placed in the city.    
 
John Coll explained why he had chosen the pose and details such as the flares and boots 
(of 1970s fashion) with him sitting on a 1960s classic design chair.  He stressed how the 
sculpture was made to be strong.  He saw the sculpture as being accessible and viewed at 
eye level.  He imagined people being photographed at it.    
 
Meeting with Patrick and John Kelly (brothers of Luke Kelly) with Des Geraghty 
Patrick and John Kelly explained that their brother Jimmy was away.  Des Geraghty also 
explained that Jimmy had particularly asked him to attend to represent his intentions and 
thoughts about the commissions.  He explained why the Kelly family had some discomfort 
with the sculpture by Vera Klute with the pallor of the maquette and that the family wanted a 
‘Street Sculpture’.  It was explained to them that Vera Klute’s proposal was for a large scale 
portrait and that the stone would be much more flesh-like than the white wax.  The Kelly 
brothers and Des Geraghty acknowledged that they had not understood the scale of the 
proposed sculpture and that they now understood the proposed artwork better.  They stated 
that they did not want to criticise the artwork by Vera Klute, or to ‘knock the process for the 
commission’ and that one sculpture was radical and the other traditional.  They stressed that 
they did not want to discommode Vera Klute.  

Page 74



Des Geraghty explained about knowing Luke Kelly since the 1960s and how the music and 
art scene in Dublin was radically altered by the emergence of folk / traditional music and 
writers like Patrick Kavanagh, Brendan Behan, etc and how Luke Kelly and the members of 
the Dubliners had contributed enormously to the revival of Irish Music.  He described the 
various haunts of the music and literati circles of the time in a geographic area from Grafton 
Street to Baggot Street and that this area would be appropriate.  They also acknowledged 
the difficulty with liaising with other agencies e.g. the OPW if it was to go in Stephens Green 
and how this could delay the process of placing the statue in public.  
 
The meeting concluded with Patrick and John Kelly and Des Geraghty stating that they 
would ‘go for both sculptures if you could’ but emphasising their desire to have the matter 
settled as soon as possible.    
 
Public Consultation  
 
The public were invited to attend a meeting to give their opinions on the matter.  The 
invitation to this meeting was managed through the Public Participation Network (PPN) 
which was established ‘to empower and assist groups to participate in local decision 
making’. This is the same forum which was used to elect the Community Representative, 
Róisín Lonergan.  This meeting took place on the 13th June, 2017.  After discussion, the 
consensus which emerged was that the best solution to the complex issues was to 
commission the Vera Klute sculpture as selected through the Dublin City Council process 
but also to try identify a suitable location for the John Coll sculpture.   It was stressed that the 
unfortunate situation whereby the City Council ended with two sculptures of the same 
individual should not occur again and that the established policies and procedures for the 
commissioning of statues and sculptures be adhered to.  The meeting discussed how if 
commissioned the creation of the sculpture could offer opportunities to document the 
process and also give scope for interaction with community groups and schools in the 
Docklands through Fire Station Studios.   
 
Conclusions of the Consultative Process and Research 
 
The consultation with those with a vested interest in the sculptures and beyond yielded a 
consistent respect for the proposal by Vera Klute once the scale, materials and intentions of 
the artist were fully explained.  The consensus which also emerged was that if possible both 
sculptures of Luke Kelly should be accommodated in the city.  
 
Learning  
 

 Consultation with the family and relatives of individuals to be commemorated, as well 
as local communities are an important aspect in the commissioning of statues and 
monuments.  However, a balance has to be maintained between these concerns and 
sectoral interests and the policies and overview of the City Council.   

 In the future, there should be greater adherence to the intentions and meaning of the 
Commemorative Naming Policy which states that ‘an individual should be 
commemorated with only one monument’. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 75



Recommendations 
 
The recommendations of the Luke Kelly Working Group are: 
 

 That Dublin City Council commission the Luke Kelly Sculpture by Vera Klute as 
designed and proposed by her for Luke Kelly Park along the Royal Canal in the North 
Inner City Docklands.  The commission should commence as soon as approved by 
Council. The process of fabricating the sculpture offers great possibility for 
engagement with the local community, and in particular children and young people, 
be it through workshops at Fire Station Studios (in the North Inner City) where the 
work will take place or through music.  
This engagement would heighten knowledge of Luke Kelly and his music, as well as 
visual art processes in the local area of Sheriff Street.  This process would also offer 
great potential for a film documentary or TV programme.  The original intention to 
combine funding from Dublin City Council with public and private subscriptions will be 
pursued.   
 

 That the gift from Gerry Hunt of the statue of Luke Kelly by artist John Coll be 
accepted and that Dublin City Council immediately commence to find a suitable 
location in the south city centre, as preferred by the Kelly family.  The Kelly family 
have requested that the suitable location should be in the area of the city which Luke 
Kelly is most associated with as a musician and well known figure in Dublin.  Dublin 
City Council will have to fund the commissioning of the plinth and foundations which 
will be done in consultation with the donor and the artist.   

 
 
 

Ray Yeates, 
City Arts Officer. 

Page 76



 

 

 

Report to Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC 
 

10th July 2017 
 

Item No. 5 

 

 
Report on the delivery of infrastructure for cultural space as set out in Goal 6 of the 

Local Economic and Community Plan 2016 – 2021 (LECP) 
 
In the development of infrastructure for artists workspaces/studios the Assistant Chief 
Executive asked the City Arts Officer to convene a Working Group consisting of The Arts 
Council, Department of Arts, Heritage and Culture and the Planning and Property 
Development Department. 
 
The working group consists of  Orlaith McBride, Director of The Arts Council, Claire Doyle, 
Head of Visual Arts, The Arts Council, Paul Clegg Executive Manager Planning and Property 
Development, Mary Conway, Senior Planner, Mary Nash Department of Arts, Heritage and 
Culture and Ray Yeates, City Arts Officer. 
 
This group has met twice and agreed its purpose:-  
 
To share knowledge, intelligence and working practice from each organisation in 
such a way as to inform common approaches to the use, development and funding 
(both capital and revenue) of new or already existing buildings that are suitable or 
intended for cultural or artistic use in Dublin. The Working Group will identify agreed 
principles, best practice, and new approaches that lead to a  clearer understanding of 
how best to approach Cultural Development in Dublin within the City Development 
Plan, Arts Council and National Policy. 
 
The group acknowledged that a crisis exists in the provision and availability of artist 
workspaces and studios due to the closure or sale of key studios providers such as 
Broadstone Studios. The Visual Arts community have organised and made proposals to 
Government and the high rents and lack of suitable properties has been highlighted. 
 
The conversations have moved to assessing two areas: 
 
 1. Re purposing of existing buildings in public ownership 
 2. Studio provision in new developments.  
 
To this end a site in Weaver Park has been identified as having potential and the Assistant 
Chief Executive will head up a joint feasibility study of this site. It is hoped to commence this 
study in September. 
 
Although large scale new developments housing up to 60 artists are being proposed, 
opportunity exists in small scale ‘above the shop’ properties for which tax relief is available. 
 
The City Arts Office has briefed the Assistant Chief Executive for Planning and he will 
examine the work of the Group to see what initiatives can be taken. Mary Conway, Senior 
Planner has briefed other City Planners to look at opportunities in new Developments. 
 
Ray Yeates, 
City Arts Officer. 

Page 77





 

 

 

Report to Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC 
 

10th July 2017 
 

Item No. 6 

 

 
 

Report on the Implementation of the Cultural Strategy 
 
Dublin’s Culture Connects is about connecting: 
 
The National Neighbourhood connects our citizens to their communities, to artists and to 

cultural institutions; 

The Fundraising Fellowship Dublin connects community groups and arts organisations to 

expertise to help them build capacity in the area of marketing and fundraising; 

The Cultural Audit and Map connects our visitors, our planners and our residents to the 

assets of the city and neighbourhoods; 

The EU Lab connects Dublin’s ideas and innovations to Europe to partner on delivery and 

applications for EU Funding programmes, for the benefit of all. 

 

The National Neighbourhood 

Building on the impacts over the last 12 months, new projects are beginning to be developed 

as part of The National Neighbourhood project. We look forward to launching the plans in the 

autumn. More details soon. 

 

Dublin City Council’s sections currently planning projects with Dublin’s Culture Connects The 

National Neighbourhood are: 

 

The Area Offices 

Dublin City Gallery, The Hugh Lane 

Dublin City Public Libraries and Archives 

Dublin City Arts Office 

 

Working in partnership across the 5 areas with the National Cultural Institutions for this 

phase are the following: 

 

Central Area: The Abbey Theatre, The National Concert Hall 

South East Area: The National Gallery of Ireland, the National Archives of Ireland 

North Central Area: The National Library of Ireland 

North West Area: The National Museum of Ireland 

South Central Area: The Irish Museum of Modern Art, The Chester Beatty Library 

 

Citizen engagement: These projects are for anyone who whishes to get involved  

Our community engagement continues with Tea & Chats (visiting & listening to citizen 

groups within their community); with Culture Club (meeting groups and people at cultural 

places and talking about cultural impact); and through artist led engagement (with numerous 

Engage the City projects).  

Page 79



The ideas discussed at these sessions will be the starting point for all The National 

Neighbourhood projects and all of Dublin’s Culture Connects work. Many of the groups who 

participate at the initial stage may also become involved in designing, making and realising 

the projects down the line. Please suggest any people / community groups in your area that 

you would like to take part in the engagement process. Contact join-

in@dublinscultureconnects.ie.   

 

The Cultural Audit and Map   

The Cultural Audit and Mapping project is continuing as part of the Dublin’s Culture 

Connects programme. The project is identifying and recording information on the city’s 

culture, spanning arts, heritage, sport, recreation, food, the environment, science and more. 

An online ‘map’ will be developed (hosted on Dublin.ie) to give residents and visitors a sense 

of what’s at the heart of the city’s many communities as well as providing information on 

cultural things to do; along with a resource to Dublin City Council and other policy makers to 

plan how they will support culture in Dublin. 

 

This project requires the continued cooperation of a cross section of Dublin City Council 

departments for it to be successfully realised. 

 

EU Lab 

The continuing work of the EU Lab is going out to open tender currently. In the interim 

phase, the EU Lab is continuing the work on two projects that are in development towards 

EU project funding, while awaiting notification of the success or otherwise of the recently 

submitted Arts and Education project (via Erasmus +).  

 

There is ongoing development work for a Makerspace project proposal, which is targeting a 

September submission date via Interreg North-West Europe. The EU Lab hosted a 

workshop on Culture & Food on 16 June and is working on developing a project via Dublin 

City Council Parks section on Food, Culture, the City & the UNESCO Biosphere. 

 
Fundraising Fellowship Dublin 
 
Events: 

In May, 35 community groups and arts organisations participated in an Introduction to 
Marketing for Community Groups Seminar, presented in partnership with Business to 
Arts as part of the Fundraising Fellowship, Dublin. We had an overwhelmingly 
positive response to the event, with a wonderful mix of people and groups eager to 
learn more.  

 
The next event in the series is an Introduction to Fundraising for Community Groups 
and Arts Organisations on Tuesday 14 November at Wood Quay Venue at 6.00pm-
9.00pm. Please spread the word – groups can book a place at 
info@dublinscultureconnects.ie. 
 

Resources: 

Eighty community groups are working with us currently on developing marketing 

plans and we have just released a Guide to Marketing Video which we hope will be 

widely shared and used to support activities by small/medium sized cultural and 

community groups across the city. 

 

Page 80

mailto:join-in@dublinscultureconnects.ie
mailto:join-in@dublinscultureconnects.ie
mailto:info@dublinscultureconnects.ie


Fellows: 

The formal training programme (which lasts 18 months and includes significant ‘on 

the job’ training provided by the Business to Arts/Dublin’s Culture Connects 

partnership) has now begun for the 4 Fellows, after a huge response to the call for 

applications by these 4 key cultural companies in Dublin (Helium Arts, Fishamble: 

The New Play Company, Temple Bar Gallery + Studios, Dublin Theatre Festival) 

 

Opportunity: 

Four local community organisations will be selected to develop their marketing and 

fundraising skills through a 12-month training programme. Applications have opened 

for groups interested in receiving training and mentoring for a 12-month period in 

sponsorship and marketing. Closing date is 11 September 2017 - contact 

info@dublinscultureconnects.ie for more information. 

 

 

Ray Yeates, 

City Arts Officer 

Page 81

mailto:info@dublinscultureconnects.ie




Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



 

 

 

Report to Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC 
 

10th July 2017 
 

Item No. 9 
 

 
MANAGEMENT UPDATE REPORT 

 

PARKS AND LANDSCAPES SERVICES  
 
Bloom 2017 

 
Dara O’Daly, Landscape Architect with Dublin City Council with President Michael D. Higgins and his wife Sabina at 
his award winning Garden at Bloom 2017 
 

Dublin City Council’s Garden - A Blooming Success 
There was an exciting line up of 22 inspirational gardens at this year’s Bloom 2017 festival.   
Dublin City Council’s garden, designed by Dara O’Daly, promoted the Parks and Landscape 
Services’ work in greening the city.  This garden was awarded a Silver Gilt Award and the 
comments from the visitors were very positive towards Dublin City Council.  
 
The concept of the garden was to promote the health, well-being and other environmental 
benefits that derive from ‘Greening the City’ initiatives being carried out by Dublin City 
Council.   
The garden was designed as a sustainable, colourful urban garden with a monumental oak 
tree as the main element - the tree being a symbol of DCC’s intent to increase the population 
of trees in the city.  Dara also installed a specially designed oak bench, constructed from a 
wind fallen oak tree, reflecting the Council’s goal to provide more public seating throughout 
the city.   

Page 101



The swathes of planting are reflective of how the City Council has evolved its palette of 
planting to create more sustainable, interesting and biodiversity-friendly beds.   The garden 
also illustrated the value of trees and greening initiatives like Sustainable Urban Drainage 
Systems (SUDS).  This system acts as a reservoir for rainwater running off hard 
impermeable pavements.   
 
The pavement, bollards and water feature used in the garden were made from Leinster 
granite, reflecting the materials used in public realm improvements on our city streets.  The 
garden was framed by a mural depicting plants and nature in Dublin city.   
 
What happens to the Garden after Bloom? 
All elements of the award-winning garden will be reused in different Parks projects 
throughout the city, with the large Oak tree taking pride of place in a new park (Weaver Park) 
which is currently being developed in the Liberties area of the city. 
 
The Rose Festival 
The annual Rose Festival returns to St Anne’s Park in Raheny on the weekend of the 15th 
and 16th of July. The festival is a mix of live music from traditional to bluegrass, Arts and 
Crafts stalls, plant sales and food stalls. Also included are lots of activities for the younger 
visitors with displays of Living History, the Big Bear Planetarium, Wooly Wards Farm and our 
own Play Development team.  
Other attractions and activities include the Biodiversity Hub, the Big Dig Archaeology 
workshops and free horse and carriage rides to the Rose Garden.  The festival runs from 
9.00am to 6.00pm daily. 
 
All Weather Pitches 
The official opening of 3 new All-weather pitches took place recently in Brickfields Park, 
Greenfields Kilbarrack and St. Anne’s Park.  A new facility adjoining the Trinity Leisure 
Centre, Donaghmede will open in late June.  These facilities represent a significant 
investment but provide a first class facility that will benefit the community and surrounding 
areas greatly.  Dublin City Council license the clubs to manage the facilities. 
 

 
At the official opening of the new All-Weather Pitch at St. Anne’s Park were Lord Mayor Brendan Carr with Noel McEvoy, Leslie 
Moore, Mick Harford and Patricia Keogh from Dublin City Council’s Parks & Landscape Services. 
 
 
 

Page 102



Parks Capital Projects 
Plan Progress/Current status Next Stage 

St. Audeon’s Park & 
Grounds 
(upgrade) 

Contractor selected and discussions are 
taking place 

Works to commence 

Bushy Park: 
(Tennis Court upgrade & 
new All Weather training 
surface ) 

Work in progress Work to be 
completes  by 
August 

Rockfield Park  
(refurbished Tennis Courts & 
all weather training area ) 

Work in progress Courts to be ready in 
August 

Wolfe Tone Park & Public 
realm  
( renovation/greening) 

Consultations currently underway with all 
stakeholders regarding the re-development of 
this site 

Tender documents to 
be prepared 

Weaver Park: ( new park ) Works have commenced.  Large Oak Tree 
(from Bloom) has been planted. 

Works continue 

Bridgefoot Street ( new 
park ) 

Public consultation held 15
th
 June 2017 Progress to design 

stage 

Temple Bar Square 
redevelopment 

Workshops held with Residents 8
th
 June Agree design and 

develop final 
proposal 

North East Inner City 
(Area greening project) 

Initial site visit took place 15
th
 June 2017 Progress to design 

stage 

 
Dublin Bay Biosphere UNESCO 
 

 
 
Bull Island Nature Reserve Management Plan Review:  An update on the management 
plan was presented to the North Central Area Committee on May 31st 2017. 
Biosphere Discovery Tours:  This will be our second summer to provide unique guided 
boat tours of Dublin Bay Biosphere.  The tours will be provided onboard Dublin bay cruises 
(the St. Bridget) every Friday, Saturday, Sunday and Monday from June 23rd. 
Bull Island Volunteers:  A team of volunteers is in place every weekend on North Bull 
Island to engage with visitors and to explain the ecology, history and culture of the Island. 
 
Upcoming Events: 
 

Event Location Date / Time 

The Rose Festival St. Anne’s Park 15th& 16th July (9am – 5pm) 

Liberties Festival St. Patrick’s park 22nd July ( 12pm – 4pm ) 

 
Contact: Leslie Moore, City Parks Superintendent 
  Leslie.moore@dublincity.ie 
Tel:  2225049 
  Caroline Maher, Administrative Officer, 
  Caroline.maher@dublincity.ie 
Tel:  2222348 
 

Page 103

mailto:Leslie.moore@dublincity.ie
mailto:Caroline.maher@dublincity.ie


 
DUBLIN CITY GALLERY THE HUGH LANE 
 
Visitor numbers 
14,210 visits to the Gallery were recorded in May 2017, slightly up on May 2016 when we 
welcomed 13,105 visitors. 
 
Capital Works Programme 
As the scope of this project has altered from initial approval, it is subject to the new Capital 
Project Appraisal process.  The Capital Appraisal documentation is being prepared at 
present.  If approval is received, works remain on target for commencement in 2018, at 
which stage the 1930’s wing will close for that year. 
 
Strategic Plan 2017 - 2022 
The Gallery’s Strategic Plan is now in final stages of draft. It is due to be presented to the 
SPC in the autumn. 
 
Education and Community Engagement 
Port Perspectives Seminar  
A seminar exploring themes arising from the Port Life: Eugeen van Mieghem and Ocean 
After Nature exhibitions including the role of the artist as witness in society took place in the 
Hugh Lane Gallery on Wednesday 24 May. Guest speakers at this well attended event 
were Erwin Joos, Dr Niamh Ann Kelly and Alaina Claire Feldman.  Prof. Declan McGonagle 
chaired the lively session of questions following the presentations. 
 
New Series: ‘Basic Talks’  
‘Basic Talks’ is a new series of informal talks with leading contemporary practitioners, taking 
place at the Hugh Lane Gallery on the second Friday of every month and is programmed 
until February 2018. Curated by Basic Space in partnership with The Hugh Lane, the series 
is an open platform for talks, panels, lectures and performances. Speakers include artists, 
curators, writers and critics who generate discourse on producing and exhibiting art. In May 
– August talks have/will be delivered by artists Ali Kirby, Bassam Al-Sabah, Eimear Walsh 
and Aoibheann Greenan  
 
UCD School of Architecture 
On Friday 30 June, the education space and display area of the Hugh Lane hosted students 
from the UCD School of Architecture as part of their summer school exploring themes arising 
from the idea of the port and the city.  The student architects’ work was displayed and peer 
reviewed as part of this process.  
 
Port Perspectives Community Drawing Club Exhibition  
A display of work made by community groups participating in the Port Perspectives 
engagement programme will be on view in the Hugh Lane from 4 -17 July. The Port 
Perspectives engagement programme is co-ordinated by Declan McGonagle and the 
participating groups are East Wall Youth, Sean O'Casey Community Centre, St Andrew's 
Resource Centre and Ringsend and Irishtown Community Centre, all of which are Port 
communities.  

Page 104



Summer Community Outreach Projects  
Artist led art workshops for children in collaboration with DCC Sherriff Street Recreation 
Centre will take place both in the recreation centre and the Hugh Lane Gallery during July 
and August. Additional collaborative projects with other community organisations are also 
planned to take place.    
 
Collaborative Arts Partnership Programme 2017-2018: Seamus Nolan 
The Gallery is working with artist Seamus Nolan the recipient of the CAPP award, for his 
collaboration and engagement with the travelling community, traveller activists and 
archivists. He is working with Pavee Point, located at North Great Charles Street and The 
National Archives to investigate the idea of archive, deconstruct ideas on ‘heritage’ and 
engage with communities of place and of interest.  
 
Hugh Lane Fulbright Award 2017-2018 
Lesley McBride, currently Community Outreach and Projects Manager at YAYA, New 
Orleans, USA, has been awarded the Hugh Lane Fulbright education residency award for 
2017-2018. This residency will commence in October 2017 and she will assist with 
researching and developing Hugh Lane community engagement programmes during this 
time.  
 
DCC Neighbourhood Project 2017-2018 
The Hugh Lane Gallery will be partnering with the North Central Area; The National Library 
of Ireland; Dublin City Arts Office; North Central Area Office; and Dublin City Public Libraries 
as part of this project.  
 
Ongoing programmes at the Hugh Lane 
A full programme of talks, film screenings, week-long children’s summer art camps, adult 
drawing classes and tours continue to take place at the Hugh Lane. These include reading-
workshops by children’s authors as part of the Dublin Festival of Literature in May, a creative 
writing workshop for children inspired by the Eugeen van Mieghem exhibition and special 
talks by the artist Anne Madden in conversation with the Director in conjunction with the 
artist’s current exhibition Colours of The Wind - Ariadne’s Thread.  
 
Harry Clarke Anthology of Essays 
Jessica O’Donnell, Head of Education and Community Outreach, is contributing an essay 
on The Eve of St Agnes by Harry Clarke to the forthcoming publication Harry Clarke and 
Artistic Visions of the New Irish State (Dublin: Irish Academic Press) (eds. Dr Angela 
Griffith, Dr  Roisin Kennedy & Marguerite Helmers) 
 
Exhibitions 
 
Eugeen Van Mieghem 
 

 
 
Eugene van Meighem, Moeder met kind aan de Schelde (studie)1922 

Page 105



The very successful and popular exhibition, Eugeen Van Mieghem PORT LIFE ended 11th 
June 2017.  
The exhibition highlighted issues of Migrations both historically and in terms of what was 
pertinent in contemporary news stories. 
 
Visitor Numbers: 1st February till 31st May were 51, 796 
 

 71 artworks were borrowed for exhibition 

 A Publication accompanied the exhibition  

 Worked in partnership with the Eugene Van Meighem museum 

 Successful sponsorship partnership with Dublin Port  

 Extensive press and media coverage. 

 A community education programme was developed to respond to the themes in the 
exhibition. 

 
ANNE MADDEN: Colours of the Wind - Ariadne’s Thread 
 

 
 
Barbara Dawson, Anne Madden and Sabina Higgins 
 
1st June – 10th September 2017 
Sabina Higgins opened ANNE MADDEN: Colours of the Wind - Ariadne’s Thread at a 
reception on 31st May. It was very well received by press coverage in Irish Times, Sunday 
Times, Cork Examiner and IAR. 
“ the closed-in underworld and the limitless expanse of the creative possibly is fully evident 
in her recent chromatically exultant paintings’………..Aidan Dunne, Irish Times 06/06/17 
 
A fully illustrated catalogue with essays by Brian O Doherty and Yvonne Scott accompanies 
the exhibition. 
 
Loans out 
 
Highlanes Gallery Drogheda- exhibition-Stands- period of loan 07.07.2017 – 28.09.2017 
King Lear by James Barry, Print 
Study of a Man’s Head by S.C. Harrison, Etching  
Glendalough by Lady Beatrice Glenavy, Sculpture on painted plaster  
 
 
 

Page 106



Loans out from our collection due for 
return  
Evening Achill by Grace Henry to  Musee 
d’Orsay Paris for exhibition “Au-delà des 
étoiles. Le paysage mystique de Monet à 
Kandinsky”, 13.03.2017 – 25.06.2017 
Loans in to gallery due for return 
Eugeen Van Mieghem, exhibition Port Life, 
8 February 2017 – 11 June 2017 – 71 
artworks to be returned 
 
Movement of Artworks to storage 
Work is ongoing on the conservation, 
packing and art movement of works 
selected for movement to new storage 
facility in Swords.  This secure, 
environmentally controlled premises will 
free up space to facilitate the de-installation 
and safe storage of works that will be 
required prior to the refurbishment 
programme. 
 

Clive Bermingham, Art Handler, condition 
checking artwork  on loan to Farmleigh House 

 
Programme of events for July/August 2017 
 

Event description Date/time 

Film Screenings 
Anne Madden – Painter and Muse  

 
09/07/17 @3pm 
12/07/17 @ 1pm 

Coffee Conversations 
An introduction to the Port Perspectives: community 
Drawing Clubs Exhibition  Fee €5 
Artist Anne Madden will discuss her work in the 
exhibition Colours of the Wind – Ariadne’s Thread Fee 
€5 

Basic Talks: 
Artist and writer Eimear Walsh will discuss her practice.  
Free 
 

Film screenings: 
Anne Madden Painter & Muse.  Director Bill Hughes, 
RTE Art Lives, 2006.  56 mins.  Free 
 

Heritage Week:  
 Walking through time.  Trail through Charlemont House 
with insights into architectural features and heritage. 

 
05/07/17 @ 11am 
 
12/07/17 @ 11am 
 
14/07/17 @ 1pm 
 
 
 
09/07/17 @ 3pm & 
12/07/17 @ 1pm 
 
 
 
24/08/17 @ 11am 

Summer Camp 6-10 year olds. Fee €40 04 – 07/07/17 
10.30 – 12.00 

Summer Camp 10-14 year olds. Fee €40 11 – 14/07/17 
10.30 – 12.00 

Summer Camp 14-17 year olds. Fee €40 18 – 21/07/17 
2 p.m. – 4 p.m. 

Page 107



Children’s workshops: 
Art workshop for 3-6 year olds.  Fee €5 
 
 
 
Art workshop for 6-10 year olds.  Fee €5 

 

 
03/08/17 @ 11am 
10/08/17 @ 11am 
 
 
17/08/17 @ 11am 
24/08/17 @ 11am 
31/08/17 @ 11am 

 
 
For full programme details on the gallery exhibitions, education programme and events, 
please visit: 
 
www.hughlane.ie 
 
t. @TheHughLane 
f.  Dublin City Gallery The Hugh Lane       
  
Contact: Barbara Dawson, Director 
Tel:   222 5551 

Tara Robertson, Administrative Officer 
Tel:    222 5559 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 108

http://www.hughlane.ie/


EVENTS SECTION 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

PETS IN THE CITY – 14TH May 
 

DUBLIN DANCE FESTIVAL: MOVEABLE FEAST – 21st May 
 

The 4th Pets in the City event took 
place on the 14th May on Smithfield 
Square. This was a free family friendly 
event with an estimated audience 
attendance of 6,000 throughout the 
day.  The Garda Canine Unit, Garda 
Equine Unit, Customs Dogs Unit as 
well as Reptile Haven and Wooly 
Wood Farm took part on the day. 
 

Moveable Feast held in Merrion 
Square  as part of the Dublin Dance 
Festival, included a free family picnic 
with fun and interactive dance 
experiences.  Events included a baby 
boogie tent, family yoga in the open 
air, performances by Dublin Youth 
Dance Company and CoisCeim 
Broadreach and dance workshops for 
kids.  The highlight of the day was 
‘Dance the Nelken-Line’ finale with 
open workshops and dance 
sequences, which snaked through the 
park and had all participants up 
dancing around Merrion Square.  

Page 109



  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

BATTLE FOR THE BAY – 20th to 21st May 
 

This festival is growing from strength 
to strength. Now in it’s 11th year, it was 

tested with very windy and rainy 
conditions, but still drew the crowds 
with the simple concept of fun in the 

wind and on the water!  Some of the 

best Kite Surfers from around the 
country and the globe gathered on 
Dollymount Beach to compete in the 
Battle for the Bay.  The beach was 
full of activity, with live bands and 
music on stages, a fantastic food 
village, markets, funfair rides and 
kids play zones. The Biodiversity 
Village was extremely popular, 
showcasing the wildlife of Dublin 
Bay. 
 

STREETS OF DUBLIN 5K – 21st May 
 

Building on the success of last 

year’s Dublin Remembers 1916 

5k Run, the Streets of Dublin 5k 

Run took place on Sunday the 

21st of May, with approximately  

2,000 runners taking part.  The 

event, which was organised by 

Athletics Ireland, in partnership 

with Dublin City Council, received 

great feedback from participants 

and featured a very special 

appearance by An Taoiseach,  

Leo Varadkar who took part in the 

event. 

 

Page 110



 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

ONE FAMILY DAY – 27th May 
 

One Family Day took place on 
the 27th May, and this year 
relocated to Smithfield Square. 
This is an annual free event 
which is inclusive to all, with 
particular emphasis on families 
with younger children, children 
and parents of one-parent 
families from socio-economically 
disadvantaged communities.  
The event  consists of free 
family entertainment, workshops 
taking place in the Vintage Bus, 
the Library Bus and Brown Bag 
Films including various outdoor 
activities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Films including various outdoor 
activities. 
 

BLOOM FRINGE – 3rd to 4th June 
 

Bloom Fringe, Dublin’s Urban 
Greening Festival took to Wolfe 
Tone Park on the June Bank 
Holiday and transformed the 
Square into a “Pop Up Pasture”. 
Highlights included workshops on, 
Coffee Cup Gardens, Urban 
Gardening, Vegetable Gardening, 
Seed Bombing and lots of family 
friendly games to play on location 
all day.  
 

Page 111



 

 

 

 
 
 

RIVERFEST – 3rd, 4th and 5th June 
 

This year’s Dublin Port Riverfest 
attracted thousands of visitors each 
day to a great free family event.  
This year, the thunder cats racing 
team wowed audiences with their 
manoeuvres on the water.  An 
impressive line up of eight tall ships 
were also on view for all over the 
week-end.  There was a great 
atmosphere with lots of music, food, 
funfairs and offshore entertainment 
for all the family.   
 

DUBLIN KITE FESTIVAL – 18th June 
 

For the 5th year running, this Dublin City 

Council event, was a jam packed day of 

exhilarating fun for all the family on 
North Bull Island, Clontarf.  With the sun 

blazing this year, the Dublin Kite 
Festival attracted record numbers, 
brandishing an array of colourful kites 
illuminating the skyline. There was free 
entertainment all day long, ensuring 

that attendees enjoyed a carefree 
Sunday afternoon reliving childhood 
memories of kite flying, whilst having 

fun with friends and family. The kids 
kite making workshops produced 2,000 
kites during the day that took to the 
skies! The day also boasted lively 
music, exciting games, food stalls and 
the ever popular ice-cream van along  
with kite flying competitons.  
 
with kite flying competitions. 

Page 112



FILMING UPDATE 
 
Dublin City Council’s Film Liaison service has provided assistance to a number of 
productions which have had recent film festival award success: 
 

 
 
“Heartbreak”, won an IFTA, for best short production  
 

  
 
“Muse” and “the Lodgers” were selected for premieres at the Cannes Film Festival, both of 
which were Irish co-productions, shot in Dublin. 
 

 
 
“Can’t Cope, Won’t Cope” and “Heartbreak” were both nominated for this year’s Writers 
Guild Awards, winners will be announced at the end of the month.  
 
 
 
 

Page 113



Upcoming Events 
 
 

Date Event Description Location 

6th July Docklands 5K 5k Road race Docklands 
http://www.docklands5k.com/ 

7th-9th July City Spectacular Free family street 
performance event 

Merrion Square 
http://www.cityspectacular.com/ 

15th July Grand Dublin 
Swim 

Mile and one quarter swim River Liffey 
 

15th-16th July 98fm Big Slide 
Festival 

Family festival and water slide Winetavern Street and 
Amphitheatre 
http://www.98fm.com/ 

22nd July Dublin Maker Invention and creativity family 
festival 

Merrion Square 
http://www.dublinmaker.ie/ 

29th July Festival of 
Chariots 

Ratha Yatra, or Festival of the 
Chariots, is a re-enactment of 
a sacred journey of Lord 
Krishna 

Merrion Sq/St. Stephens Green 
http://rathayatra.ie/ 

July/August Dublin Concert 
Band Summer 
Sessions 

Free open air performances 
by the Dublin Concert Band 

July 9 @ 2:00 pm - 4:00 pm 
Herbert Park, Ballsbridge. 
July 23 @ 2:00 pm - 4:00 pm St 
Patrick’s Park, St Patrick's 
Cathedral. 
August 13 @ 2:00 pm - 4:00 pm 
Harold’s Cross Park, Harold's 
Cross 
http://dublinconcertband.ie/ 

Every 
Thursday July 

Wood Quay 
Summer 
Sessions 

Series of free lunchtime 
concerts 

Civic Offices Amphitheatre 
https://dublin.ie/whats-on/dublin-
city-council-events/ 

12th - 13th 
August 

Rock n Roll Half 
Marathon 

Half marathon and 10k races Start CHQ-Phoenix park 
http://www.runrocknroll.com/dublin 

12th - 13th 
August 

Rock n Roll 
Festival 

50s themed family event Dame District, Dublin 2 
http://dublinrocknrollfestival.com/ 

20th August Ironman 70.3 Half Ironman Triathlon Dun Laoghaire start, finish 
Phoenix Park 
http://eu.ironman.com/triathlon/ 
events/emea/ironman-70.3/ 
dublin.aspx#axzz4k4QiaZRC 

 
 
Contact: Alison King, Administrative Officer, 
Email:  Alison.king@dublincity.ie 
Tel:  2223145 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 114

http://www.docklands5k.com/
http://www.cityspectacular.com/
http://www.98fm.com/
http://www.dublinmaker.ie/
http://rathayatra.ie/
http://dublinconcertband.ie/
https://dublin.ie/whats-on/dublin-city-council-events/
https://dublin.ie/whats-on/dublin-city-council-events/
http://www.runrocknroll.com/dublin
http://dublinrocknrollfestival.com/
http://eu.ironman.com/triathlon/
mailto:Alison.king@dublincity.ie


ARTS OFFICE 

 

 

    
 

International Literature Festival Dublin 2017 drew record audiences (8670) and box-office 
(83% increase)   to a strong and diverse programme of over 60 events across the 10 festival 
days. Highlights included Arundhati Roy, Werner Herzog, Elizabeth Strout, Richard 
Dawkins, Madeleine Thien, Will Self, Inua Ellams, a commissioned children’s programme 
celebrating Swift 350; and a new Stories from the City strand with events in school, library, 
business, college and cultural centre settings.   
 
The new tender for management worked very well, with an enhanced approach and 
investment in marketing.   It is now proposed to combine Programming and Management 
tenders to consolidate operations and to facilitate longer term planning. Next year marks 21st 
year of the Festival and planning is underway to celebrate through ambitious programming 
and partnerships.  
 

 
Dublin City Council and City of Dublin Education and Training Board (CDETB) facilitated the 
development of a collaborative music education partnership with Dublin Institute of 
Technology, the National Concert Hall, and the Royal Irish Academy of Music,  to establish 
and support  a strategic music service and  network across the five administration areas of 
Dublin City. The focus of this partnership was an application to Music Generation national 
programme, closing date May 31st 2017. Partner meetings were augmented by small group 
consultations and local information meetings in the five administrative areas.  Music 
Generation operates on a 50/50 matched funding basis. They will provide 50% philanthropic 
seed funding up to a maximum of €200,000 annually for an initial three-year period.  Dublin 
Music Education Partnership (MEP) aims to address the existing gaps in music education 
provision, and address gaps in access to music education through the formation of 
sustainable models based on co-operation, co-ordination and the sharing of resources by 
local providers. Should the application be successful, an internal partnership approach to 
resourcing and supporting this developmental action, particularly across Culture, Social 
Inclusion, Community and Area Offices, will be applied.  It is proposed that CDETB would 
act as the lead agency for governance and employment to support the operational structure.  
 
We have been notified that a total of 16 applications were received from partnerships around 
the country, only 5 of which will be initially successful. 
Thereafter “Subject to additional philanthropic funding becoming available, the intention is to 
establish the programme in nine MEP Areas in Phase 2.”  Results of the initial application 
process should be known by end of July. 
 

Page 115



  
 

MusicTown 2017 is an initiative of Dublin City Arts Office, programmed through a curated 
open call process and by contractors Aiken Promotions.  Highlights included a traditional and 
folk tribute to Brady/Irvine; the inaugural Dublin International Choral Festival; Craig David; 
John Prine; Katie Kim with Crash Ensemble; and Opera Theatre Company’s production of 
Acis and Galatea. 
  
MusicTown attracted 15,000+ people  to 50  events over 11 days.   
 
It is proposed to renew the contract with Aiken Promotions for MusicTown 2018, as provided 
for under the initial tender process. A call for proposals will be issued in July/August and the 
proposed dates for next year’s festival are March 22 – April 2nd 2018. 
 
 

 
 

The Arts, Education and Learning Policy for Dublin City Arts Office was passed by Dublin 
City Council in November 2016. The Arts, Education and Learning Policy acknowledges that 
the Arts can play a unique role in learning at any age both inside and outside of the 
classroom and sets out the arts office’s approach to questions around where our 
responsibilities lie in addressing this – what resources we have as an Arts Office, the 
resources that we could generate through strategic partnership, and why this is important for 
people living in Dublin city.   There are numerous Arts, Education and Learning actions being 
funded by DCC both in formal and non formal settings as well under 18 and over 18. 
 
A gathering of key stakeholders took place on 16th May at 3pm-5pm, The Oak Room of 
The Mansion House, chaired by Deputy Lord Mayor, Rebecca Moynihan. A map 
towards a framework for implementation was presented.  The implementation framework 
will align with The Creative Ireland Programme 2017-2022/Pillar 1 – To Enable the Creative 
Potential of Every Child and Dublin City Local Economic and Community Plan (2016-2021).   
The Arts Office is currently working on establishing a Steering Group to include arts, 
education, business, culture and community development to oversee the implementation 
framework.  
 

Page 116



Exhbitions at The LAB 

 

trying to behave, Theresa Nanigian 

April 06 - June 04 2017 

 

 
 

trying to behave, a solo show by artist Theresa Nanigian opened in the The Lab, Dublin on 
6th April, as part of the just a bit extraordinary tour. The tour comprised ‘three chapters’ in 
which the artist has chosen an equal number of idiosyncratic groups, loosely aligned to a 
particular stage in psychosocial development, to serve as her muse in exploring the 
expression of identity across the lifespan. 
 
trying to behave employed a particular pastime as the lens through which to consider older 
age – the bi-monthly tea dances at the Royal Opera House in Covent Garden. Having 
attended this event on numerous occasions, observing, filming, and surveying numerous 
patrons, the artist uncovered several dichotomies about this disparate group of individuals 
who share an ardent passion: Composure and vulnerability; vivaciousness and feebleness; 
spirit and neediness; beauty and decline. 
 
The exhibition consisted of photographs taken at the Royal Opera House, as well as, a short 
video projection of dancers from the Macushla Dance Club at DanceHouse, Dublin. 
Responses to the Twenty Statements self-concept survey were also on display – a common 
link across all the exhibitions in the tour. 
 
trying to behave was partially funded by the Arts Council as part of the Touring and 
Dissemination of Work Scheme award. 
 
Artist Bio: 
Theresa Nanigian works in installation, moving image, text, drawing and photography. She 
has exhibited throughout Ireland in venues such as the Void (Derry), the Royal Hibernian 
Academy (Dublin), the Butler Gallery (Kilkenny) and the Crawford Art Gallery (Cork), as well 
as, internationally. Nanigian’s practice also includes public art projects, with her most recent 
commission titled Travelogue winning the Allianz Business to Arts Award for Best 
Commissioning Practice. She holds an MA in New Media (NCAD) and BA in Fine Art (DIT). 

Page 117



The artist was born in the U.S. and has lived in Dublin for over 18 years. Nanigian’s work 
can be viewed on her website at: www.theresananigian.com 
 
Bealtaine Event: Now You See Me, Now You Don’t 
May 04 2017 
 

 

Now you see me, now you don’t was a conversation on representations of older women and 
took place in the context of artist Theresa Nanigian’s exhibition trying to behave which 
showed at the LAB until 4th June.  
 
This short discussion was primarily aimed at drawing out critical understandings and views 
of how older women are both imagined, portrayed and received, in the media and society. 
The discussion was chaired by Irish Times journalist Hilary Fannin and included Dr. Brid 
Connolly (Lecturer, Adult and Community Education NUIM), artist Pauline Cummins 
and dance artist Rionach Ni Neill.  
 

Public Art Report 
Nomination for a new External Public Art Expert  
Visual Artists Ireland has nominated curator Maolíosa Boyle to the Arts and Cultural 
Advisory Group.  Maolíosa Boyle was appointed director of Rua Red in 2016 and previously 
was the Director of Void Contemporary Art Gallery in Derry.  In 2013, Maoliosa was the 
Senior Curator for the Turner Prize curating both Lynette Yiadom Boakye and David 
Shrigley. In the same year she was on the selection panel for the British Pavilion at the 
Venice Biennale selecting Jeremy Deller. In 2013 Maolíosa was named as one of the top 
100 creative catalysts in Ireland by the Irish Times.  Maolíosa holds a BA Hons in Fine Art 
from the NCAD, an MFA from the University of Ulster and a Postgraduate Diploma in Arts 
Management from University of Ulster and Boston College. 
 
Luke Kelly Working Group  
The Luke Kelly Working Group has now completed its work as proposed in the Terms of 
Reference presented to the SPC for Arts, Culture and Recreation.  The Group met with Vera 
Klute, artist whose proposal was selected through the Dublin City Council agreed process, 
Gerry Hunt, private individual who commissioned the sculpture who was accompanied by 
the artists John Coll, and Patrick and John Kelly along with Des Geraghty, representing the 
Kelly family.  A public consultation meeting was also held on the 13th June, 2017.  The report 
and recommendations of the Luke Kelly Working Group are attached as a separate report. 
 

Page 118

http://www.theresananigian.com/


Talking Statues Dublin  
Fáilte Ireland has been working with Sing London, the developers of the Talking Statues 
projects in London, Manchester, Leeds and Chicago on a pilot scheme for Dublin, after 
approval by the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group and SPC for Arts, Culture and Recreation.   
Fáilte Ireland has liaised with the Arts Office in Dublin City Council regarding the 
development and rollout of the project.  The idea is that well known figures in the arts write 
an imaginary script of what a statue might say and that these are then voiced by well known 
actors.  These are then made accessible to the public on their mobile telephones, who after 
scanning a QR code or inputting a code will 'receive a call back from the statue’.  A sign at 
each statue indicates the Talking Statues throughout the city.  The following is the list of 
statues, scriptwriters and actors.  These include statues owned by Dublin City Council, 
National Gallery of Ireland, Trinity College Dublin, OPW, SIPTU and An Post.   
 

Statue Writer Actor 

George Bernard Shaw Arthur Matthews TBC 

Meeting Point Rachel Kilfeather Brenda Fricker 

James Joyce Roddy Doyle Gabriel Byrne 

Daniel O’Connell Paula Meehan Ruth Negga 

James Connolly Brendan O’Carroll Brendan O’Carroll 

Oscar Wilde John Banville Andrew Scott 

Wolf Tone Patrick McCabe Brendan Gleeson 

James Larkin Enda Walsh Stephen Rea 

Cú Chulainn Eoin Colfer TBC 

Oliver Goldsmith Competition Statue TBC 

Molly Malone  Competition Statue TBC 

 
One of the features of the Talking Statues projects in other cities has been to organise public 
competitions for a script.  Fáilte Ireland and Sing London propose that the statue of Molly 
Malone is the subject for one of two competitions in Dublin.  Fáilte Ireland will run the Talking 
Statues pilot project in Dublin for a year.  They intend to launch the project in August.   
 
Proposals for Permanent Art 
 
Statue of Kevin Heffernan 
Parks and Landscape Services who are working on the development of a garden at the start 
of Clonliffe Road proposes to include a statue of Kevin Heffernan.   He has approached the 
Dublin County Board about the proposal.    
 
Recommendation  
Under the Public Art Policy 2009 and the Commemorative Naming Policy (renewed 2017) 
individuals have to have been dead for more than 20 years before a statue of them is 
installed on Dublin City Council property.   While there is little doubt of Kevin Heffernan’s 
importance as manager of the Dublin Gaelic Football Team from the1970s and into the 
1980s, it is important to adhere to City Council policy.  Recommendation: Not to commission 
the statue. 
 
Care and Maintenance of Public Artworks 
 
Trace by Grace Weir 
The Public Art Manager was asked to report on the issues relating to the sculpture Trace by 
Grace Weir, commissioned in 1988.  This sculpture was removed after agreement with the 
Arts and Cultural Advisory Group and the artist, to facilitate a right turn from St Stephens 
Green onto Merrion Row.  

Page 119



The artist was consulted about the idea of locating it on the new traffic island and after 
consideration, agreed to its exact location and orientation.  The works were scheduled to be 
completed within months.  The Roads and Traffic Department engaged architectural 
conservation specialists to document and undertake the take down and storage of the 
various elements of the sculpture.  Due to the lack of specialised facilities for storage of 
sculpture in Dublin City Council, the robust nature of the elements of the artwork, as well the 
intended short-timescale of the works, the Public Art Manager arranged with Waste 
Management that the sculptural elements be stored on palettes in an unused area of 
Gulliston Terrace Waste Management Depot.   The work was expertly handled and left 
under tarpaulin.     
 
After commencement of the work, the traffic island was redesigned for traffic engineering 
purposes and for health and safety reasons (including barriers and public lighting).  This 
meant that there was no longer space to accommodate the sculpture.  A new site was 
proposed by the Roads and Traffic Department which was a ‘build out’ at the corner of 
Kildare Street and St Stephen’s Green.   At this point the artist was again consulted for her 
thoughts on the reinstatement.  The proposed new location raised issues with the artist, as 
the original artwork was conceived and created as a site specific artwork which also included 
the paving (desire lines) on the pedestrian area as part of its design.  She was not convinced 
that the sculpture would retain its integrity in the new location.  Meanwhile, other delays in 
construction works led to further delays on the reinstatement.    
 
In November 2016, the Roads and Traffic engineers worked to have the work installed in the 
newly proposed site and a tendering process was commenced.   In March 2017, after a 
tendering process, foundations were installed and a ‘dry run’ was undertaken before the 
actual construction of the sculpture.  It was at this stage that four of the Portland stone 
blocks were reported to have been missing.   The Public Art Manager immediately went on 
site to undertake an inspection and then reported the matter to the artist.   The artist’s 
response was that this incident resolved the conflicting issues of the future of the sculpture.  
While never fully convinced that the sculpture would work in the new location, she was 
aware of the public’s appreciation of the artwork.    
 
She then subsequently wrote, “I made a decision to not reconstruct it following it being taken 
down for the Luas development. It was a site specific work designed for its original location 
with long tiled paths leading to it. I spent a long time considering if it would work in other 
locations in consultation with Ruairí Ó Cuív but nowhere else really worked well so the final 
decision made was to not reconstruct it. The Portland stone used in Trace came from the 
original Custom House. During the renovations at the time, I was given some of the old 
stone that was being replaced. The sculpture was in place for over 25 years, I think that's a 
long enough term for a public sculpture. In fact the theme of the work had to do with marks 
or traces from different sources set within the architecture of the city, so I am happy to make 
way for new interventions and see other marks being made into the city landscape.”  
 
In light of this response from the Grace Weir, the Public Art Manager has asked the Roads 
and Traffic Department to find safe and secure storage for the remaining elements of the 
sculpture as total disposal of the work would be precipitous and would require City Council 
agreement under its Decommissioning Policy (2009).   
 
Conclusion 
Ultimately, the issues relating to this sculpture highlight once again the issues relating to the 
care and conservation of the city’s collection of permanent public art, including its statues 
and sculptures.  Unlike the Luas Cross City Project for example, the Arts Office and Public 
Art do not have the resources to pay for expensive and long-term storage.  Therefore, as the 
intended timeframe for the works was to be a matter of months, the temporary outdoor 
storage in Gulliston Terrace was deemed safe and appropriate. 

Page 120



The absence of a dedicated budget for a programme of care, maintenance, conservation 
and restoration of the public art collection will continue to place the public art collection at 
risk and impede its future development for public enjoyment and appreciation of this valuable 
public collection.    
 
Statue of Philip Lynott 
The statue of Philip Lynott has been repaired and reinstated on Harry Street after been 
damaged by a truck.  It has been located nearer the buildings and now faces across the 
street to better facilitate photographs. In addition, two planters have been placed either side 
to protect the statue from damage by trucks delivering on the street.  Philip’s mother 
Philomena Lynott is very pleased with the arrangement. 
 
Inverted Oil Rig by Alan Phelan 
The Parks and Landscape Services and Public Art Manager are working with an engineer 
and artist to have the sculpture repaired and reinstated in Fr Collins Park.  An engineer has 
been appointed by the Parks Department in consultation with the Public Art Manager.  
 
Public Realm 
 
College Green 
Dublin City Council has submitted its Environmental Impact Statement to An Bord Pleanála 
relating to the redesign of College Green, which will create a major pedestrian plaza.  This 
includes the proposal to relocate the Thomas Davis Monument further west on College 
Green.  The OPW as owners of the monument and the Delaney Family (children of the 
sculptor Edward Delaney) were consulted and have supported these proposals.  Also under 
the proposal, the statue of Henry Grattan by John Henry Foley will have to be dismantled but 
would be reinstated in almost the exact same position.  The comments of Arts and Cultural 
Advisory Group members have been collated and forwarded to the Project Manager of the 
College Green Public Ream Project. 
 
Contact: Ray Yeates, City Arts Officer 

Tel:  2227849 

   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 121



SPORT AND RECREATION 
 
Facilities 
Activities  
 
The Dublin City Sport & Fitness Centres located in Ballyfermot, Ballymun, City Centre 
(Markievicz) and Finglas are running camps throughout the summer starting from 3 July 
2017.   
 
Emma Byrne 
Facility Support & Development Manager 
emma.byrne@dublincity.ie 
Tel: 01 222 3365 
 
Special Projects 
 
Women’s Rugby World Cup 2017 
 
Dublin City Council and the Dublin City Sport and Wellbeing Partnership are proudly 
supporting the Women’s Rugby World Cup 2017 (WRWC 2017). 
 
The tournament will see 12 teams compete across 30 matches, North and South of the 
border, to determine the world champions of women’s rugby.   
 
The 18 pool games will kick off at University College Dublin (UCD) on Wednesday 9th, 
Sunday 13th and Thursday 17th August 2017.  The 12 play-off (semi-final and final) matches 
will take place at  Kingspan Stadium, Belfast on Tuesday 22nd and Saturday 26th August 
2017.   
 
The Women’s Rugby World Cup 2017 provides a great opportunity to showcase Dublin City, 
as a welcoming, receptive and vibrant destination ideally positioned to host world class 
events.  The aim is to have the ‘most memorable’ Women’s Rugby World Cup ever.   
The importance of this cannot be overstated as this tournament will take place just 2 months 
before the decision is made by World Rugby on who will host the 2023 (Men’s) Rugby World 
Cup.   

As part of the support given to the tournament, the Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing 
Partnership hosted an event in the Wood Quay Venue on Wednesday 21st June 2017.  The 
event was a panel discussion with players from the Irish Women’s squad including: 

-  Marie Louise Reilly who is a Dublin City Sport and Wellbeing Partnership Sport Officer.   

- Lindsey Peat, former All Ireland winning footballer and now Irish Women’s Rugby Player 

of the Year.   

- Nora Stapleton who doubles up as out half on the team and Women’s Rugby 

Development executive with the IRFU. 

- Fiona Coghlan, Grand Slam Winning Captain and Chair of the Dublin City Sports and 

Wellbeing Partnership.   

 
The Partnership will also host a welcoming function for the competing teams at the Mansion 
House Round Room on Sunday 7th August 2017 and is working in conjunction with Dun 
Laoghaire Rathdown County Council on a fan zone at UCD during the pool stages of the 
competition.   

Page 122

mailto:emma.byrne@dublincity.ie


The tournament website www.rwcwomens.com is live for information on the teams who have 
qualified and general information can also be found at www.irishrugby.ie/ireland2017.  
 
Don Daly 
Special Projects Manager 
don.daly@dublincity.ie 
Tel: 01 222 7733 
 
 
Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Partnership 
 
Sport for Young People Small Grants 
 
The recent Sport for Young People (aged 10 – 21 yrs) Small Grant Scheme received 88 
applications from sport clubs and organisations across Dublin City that are currently being 
processed.   
Events & Activities 

International Track Cycling Grand Prix 

On 1st  and 2nd  July 2017 the International Track Cycling Grand Prix took place at the 
Sundrive Velodrome in Eamonn Ceannt Park, Dublin 12.   

This was the 5th international track cycling event in Dublin which has now embedded itself 
firmly on the UCI racing calendar.   

Throughout the event, the Irish National Team and best domestic riders competed against 
world champions from across Europe and for many of the Irish riders this was a unique 
opportunity.   

To see what the event looks like - please visit the link below.   

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=IT2RXA2JJE4 

Great Dublin Bike Ride (GDBR) 

Sport Ireland in conjunction with Cycling Ireland has teamed up with the Department of 
Transport, Tourism and Sport, Dublin City Council, Healthy Ireland and Fingal County 
Council for the Great Dublin Bike Ride which is taking place on Sunday 23rd September 
2017 starting off from the North Quays, Dublin.   

The GDBR is for all abilities and will offer a 60km route for those looking for a slightly less 
strenuous day in the saddle and a challenging 100km route for experienced riders. 

This is the 3rd year for event which is hoping to attract 6,000 participants in 2017 after the 
huge success of 2016 that had approximately 5000 cyclists.  It will also be a flagship event in 
Ireland for the European Week of Sport.   

Beat the Street 
Beat the Street is an innovative walking and cycling initiative designed to get young people 
and communities moving by turning a town/city into a giant game.   
Last year 865 schools across the UK and Northern Ireland were involved in the programme 
which saw more than 300,000 people participating. 

Page 123

http://scanmail.trustwave.com/?c=6600&d=7-uz1wQlM8Ngpobxd5LnuqmRZO1YyKQRM8hfKiG4rQ&s=342&u=http%3a%2f%2fwww%2erwcwomens%2ecom
http://scanmail.trustwave.com/?c=6600&d=7-uz1wQlM8Ngpobxd5LnuqmRZO1YyKQRM80MKyK39A&s=342&u=http%3a%2f%2fwww%2eirishrugby%2eie%2fireland2017
mailto:don.daly@dublincity.ie
http://scanmail.trustwave.com/?c=6600&d=jb6-13ob3HYUrmLzQoOO-5tM9A3Dp3zGUaFyp2F4sw&s=342&u=https%3a%2f%2fwww%2eyoutube%2ecom%2fwatch%3fv%3dIT2RXA2JJE4


From 13th September to 1st November 2017 Beat the Street is coming to Dublin and will be 

primarily rolled out in 51 schools across Dublin 8, 10 and 12.   

The aim of the programme is to inspire people to make small changes to improve their 

physical activity levels and health by encouraging walking or cycling as a way of getting from 

place to place e.g. to and from school.  

Beat Boxes will be installed to enable participants to tap with cards or fobs in order to score 

points and win prizes.   The further the distance travelled the more points accumulated.   

Beat the Street has fun competitive element that not only allows schools to compete against 

each other – it also encourages the whole family and neighbourhood to get involved.  

Cards/fobs for the programme will be available to the general public from late August/early 

September 2017 in Dublin City Council libraries and Sport & Fitness Centres.   

This initiative is being delivered by Intelligent Health (the creators of Beat the Street) on 

behalf of the Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Partnership, Dublin City Council, Healthy Ireland, 

the Dormant Accounts Fund and Sport Ireland.  

For more information on Beat the Street, the Dublin City Engagement Manager, Helena 

McColgan can be contacted by email at helena.mccolgan@intelligenthealth.co.uk or by 

phone on 0044 7825 630 544.  

 
Contact: Antonia Martin 

Programmes & Services Development Manager, Dublin City Sport & 
Wellbeing Partnership 

Email:  Antonia.martin@dublincity.ie 
Tel:   01 2227870 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 124

mailto:helena.mccolgan@intelligenthealth.co.uk
mailto:Antonia.martin@dublincity.ie


RECREATION CENTRES 
 
Cherry Orchard Mid Summer Festival 
 
We were involved in a number of roles in the Cherry Orchard Mid Summer Festival on 
Saturday May 20th including logistics, staff, safety briefing, marquees and transport. 
 
Energy Management Programme 
 
A programme for the reduction in energy use began last year with Kilmore West Recreation 
centre being the first centre to be part of this project.  
 
The Recreation Service partnered with Energy Action Ltd and an application for funding was 
submitted for support funding for energy efficiency retrofitting works under SEAI’s Better 
Energy Communities (BEC) Programme 2017. This application for 2 centres, St Laurence 
O`Tooles Recreation Centre and Hardwick Street Recreation Centre, was successful and 
approved by the SEAI to a sum of 30% of the total cost. These works are currently being 
carried out. 
 

Dublin City Council Community 

Buildings

Cost of 

measures

SEAI Grant 

30% DCC Cost

Add Energy 

Action PM fee 

(5%)

Deduct 

Energy 

Audit costs

Balance to 

pay

Hardwickwe Recreation Centre 14,045.00€   4,213.50€     9,831.50€     10,324.00€      650.00€      9,674.00€     

St Laurence O'Tooles Recreation 

Centre 19,385.00€   5,815.50€     13,569.50€   14,248.00€      650.00€      13,598.00€   

Totals 33,430.00€   10,029.00€   23,401.00€   24,572.00€      1,300.00€    23,272.00€   

 
 
Payments are being made on an agreed 3 part phased basis 
 

 50% upfront payment prior to start of works 

 40% on confirmed completion of works 

 10% on completion of quality check by SEAI 
 

Common Ground Project 
 
This project is ongoing in the St Laurence O`Tooles Recreation Centre and St Laurence 
O`Tooles Boys school. Five growing troughs were delivered and set up and prepared for 
planting.  
 
This project is an intergenerational programme where the Senior Citizens in the local 
gardening group work with the local children in planting and growing fruit and vegetables.  
 
 

 

Page 125



Planting has gone well and the teachers and children were brought to St Anne’s Park on 
Monday 19th June to see the gardens and met with the Bio-Diversity Officer for an 
introduction to nature in the park.  
Following the very successful visit, the Common Ground Project will be involved with a 
UNESCO Project in the Dublin Bay Biosphere in September. 
   
On Tuesday 13th June a video conference call was made between the children in St 
Laurence O`Tooles Recreation Centre and St Laurence O`Toole’s Boys school and 
Engelwood Neighbourhood Centre, Orlando, Florida. 
http://www.cityoforlando.net/recreation/engelwood-neighborhood-center/ 
 
Summer Student Placement Programme 
 
The Interview process is complete and the successful students informed.  
The placement begins on Monday 10th July for 6 weeks and will finish on Friday 18th August. 
The first day of the placement is for training purposes and will consist of Manual Handling, 
Dublin City Council Induction and Social Media. 
Placements will be in the Recreation Centres, Ballyfermot Outward Bounds Programme, 
Sports and Recreation Leisure Centres. 
 
AIG Heroes 
 
Bluebell Youth and Community Centre and the recreation staff partnered with Legacy 
Consultants to facilitate the AIG Heroes programme. This year a number of sports people,  
whose clubs are sponsored by AIG Insurance, came to Bluebell to meet and interact and 
introduce sports to children from St Ultans National School in Cherry Orchard and Our Lady 
of the Wayside in Bluebell. The sports included were Camogie, Hurling, Rugby and Soccer. 
The sports stars attending were from Dublin GAA football, Hurling and Camogie. 
The players included: 
 
Ciaran Reddin 
Philly McMahon 
Liam Rushe 
Eoghan O’Donnell 
Lindsay Peat – Ireland women’s rugby team 
Paul Corry – Shamrock Rovers  
Over a hundred children, both boys and girls, 
from both schools participated and both 
children and teachers had a great time.  
 
East Wall 1st of July Parade 
 
The East Wall Recreation Centre and staff  worked with the East Wall Recreation Committee 
to prepare for the 1st July East Wall Parade. 
 
The parade consisted of up to 17 groups including: 
 

 The Garda Band 

 Artane Boys Band  

 Dance Groups 

 American muscle cars 

 Irish Frisbee team 
 

There were a number of exhibitions in the East Wall Recreation Centre after the parade. 

Page 126

http://www.cityoforlando.net/recreation/engelwood-neighborhood-center/


St Laurence O`Toole Community Centre 
 
A new MUGA All Weather pitch was opened on 29th May during a low key visit to the NEIC 
by the then Taoiseach, Enda Kenny, who played some football with the local girls football 
team. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
An Taoiseach, Enda Kenny, Recreation Centre staff members and the girls football 
team 
 

Across the Recreation Centres 
 

The Summer Projects across the Recreation are being finalised with registration already 
open and begin on Monday 10th July and will run through to August. The projects will consist 
of on and off site activities.  
               
Contact: Trevor Higgins, Recreation Centres Manager 
  Trevor.higgins@dublincity.ie 
  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 127

mailto:Trevor.higgins@dublincity.ie


DUBLIN CITY PUBLIC LIBRARIES AND ARCHIVE  
 

EU Award for Home Energy Saving Kits 
The Home Energy Saving Kit, a partnership between Dublin's energy agency Codema and 
Dublin City Public Libraries, has won the Consumers Category at the European Sustainable 
Energy Awards 2017. The winners were named at a ceremony in Brussels on 20th June 
 
The EU Sustainable Energy Awards recognise outstanding innovation in energy efficiency 
and renewables. Winners are chosen from a shortlist of the year’s most successful projects 
for clean, secure and efficient energy. With prizes from an expert jury and European citizens, 
the Awards highlight new ways to shape Europe’s energy future. 
 
The judges commented on the transferable nature of the Home Energy Saving Kit and 
praised its ease of use and potential to benefit a range of users - householders, business 
and schools. 
 
The Home Energy Saving Kits can be borrowed from all branch libraries. 
 
Commemorations – Historians-in-Residence 

The six Historians-in-Residence with Dublin City Council are:  

 Central: Darragh Gannon 

 North West: Donal Fallon 

 North Central: Cormac Moore 

 South East: Maeve Casserly 

 South Central: Cathy Scuffil: 

DCLA Pearse Street: Brian Hanley 

 

The historians are available to give talks, walks and to offer help and guidance with historical 
research. They have been making contact with librarians, area offices, and local groups in 
their areas, and will be engaging with schools in the autumn. They are also planning “History 
on your Doorstep” information panels to bring history onto the streets. Follow them on 
@DubHistorians. 
 
Notices to library patrons 
In response to the increase in postage charges and the widespread use of email and mobile 
phones, the library service ceased sending printed overdue notices on 6th June 2017. 
Patrons will receive overdue notices by email or text message. An information campaign was 
run in libraries and online to notify library users. 
 
Summer Stars Programme 
The 2017 Summer Stars Programme was launched on 13th June and will run in all branch 
libraries until 31st August. Children taking part in the programme get a special reading card 
at their local library to track their reading during the summer holidays.  The target is eight 
books, and at various stages the children receive rewards to encourage them to keep 
reading. Those who take part in the challenge will be invited to an event in their local library 
in September to celebrate participation. They will receive a Certificate of Achievement and 
goodie pack. 
 
Creative Ireland 
A third public consultation workshop was held on 3rd May at the Wood Quay Venue. The 
Dublin City Culture and Creativity Plan 2017 was launched along with the other local 
authority plans by An Taoiseach at an event on 25th May. 
 

Page 128



Discussions between the Dublin City Creative Ireland Team on the drafting of the 2018 plan 
are underway. 

    
Projects - Update   

Project Progress/Current Status Next Stage 

Proposed New City 

Library, Parnell Square 

Site investigations works 

commenced on site on 20th 

February 2017 and are 

substantially complete. 

Information gathered during these 

works will serve to de-risk the 

project ahead of construction. 

Site investigation works to be 
completed. 

Kevin Street Library – 
Refurbishment 

Construction works are 
continuing.  
The tender for furniture/fit-out is 
completed and a contract 
awarded. Arrangements with the 
contractor are being agreed. 

Completion of 
works/handover (23rd 
August).  

Library Management 

System 

This national project is led and 

managed by Dublin City Council. 

Review of system parameters 
and performance, and 
required enhancements. 

Pilot distribution system 

for inter-library loans 

Pilot underway with two 

deliveries/collections to/from 

Dublin City branches each week. 

Monitoring and review of pilot 
to be undertaken. 

Commemorations 
programme 2017 – 
Historians-in-Residence 

Irish Revolution 1916-23 lecture 
series:  lectures have been taking 
place in June (and will run into 
July) in libraries across the city 
and have been attracting large 
audiences. The series can be 
repeated in other venues if there 
is demand and may be repeated 
in libraries 

Delivery of three-part lecture 
series on the The Irish 
Revolution 1917-1923; 
engaging with librarians, 
community officers and local 
groups and planning history 
 events. 

Creative Ireland Discussions on drafting of 2018 

plan underway. 

Drafting of Creative Ireland 
plan for 2018. 

Dublin North East Inner 
City Project – Readers-
in-Residence 
programme 

Three school and community 
readers are working in 17 
different centres in the area; very 
positive feedback and excellent 
engagement. 

Work to continue during 
summer months on 
evaluations of survey work 
etc; public readings in library 
and Rose festival; logo and 
promotional material to be 
devised. 

Dublin North East Inner 
City Project - CoderDojo 
programme 

Pilot project begun with 20 
children, with field trip to Coolest 
Project at RDS 17th June and 
themed weekly making and 
coding sessions beginning in 
Charleville Mall library. 

Coding to continue during 
summer months with reserve 
list for future sessions due to 
high demand. 

 
 
 
 

Page 129



Dates/Events for your Diary  
 

Event Location Date / Time 

Summer Stars Reading 
Programme  

Branch libraries June to August 

Summer Programme for 
Children  

Branch libraries July & August 

Rose Festival - Dublin 
City Libraries will be 
present with a 
programme of events for 
families to include story-
times for younger 
children, book clinic for 
older children, and kite 
making workshops at the 
library tent and  mobile 
library. 

St. Anne’s Park 15th & 16th July 

Heritage Week  - a two-
week programme of 
talks, performances and 
workshops exploring 
local heritage. This year 
the theme will be natural 
heritage of the city and 
libraries will work with 
partners in Dublin City 
Council’s biodiversity 
section. 
 

Branch libraries. 19-27 August 

Culture Night – a 
programme of cultural 
events for Culture Night 
and for Canalaphonic 
Festival. 

Pearse Street  & Rathmines 
Libraries 

22nd September 

Words on the Street 
2017   

Locations around the Parnell 
Square Cultural Quarter. 

7th September 

 
 
Contact: Margaret Hayes, Dublin City Librarian 
  Margaret.hayes@dublincity.ie 
Tel:  01 6744800 
  Brendan Teeling, Deputy City Librarian 
  Brendan.teeling@dublincity.ie 
  01 6744800 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 130

mailto:Margaret.hayes@dublincity.ie
mailto:Brendan.teeling@dublincity.ie


CITY HALL (EXHIBITION AND ROTUNDA) 
 
As previously stated visitor numbers to the exhibition in City Hall reached a record high in 
2016 with over 43,296 visitors to the exhibition. The entire exhibition was invigorated to 
reflect the 1916 Rising. Dublin Fire Brigade also had a  DFB 1916 exhibition on display.  
 
This year we have seen a reduction in visitors numbers to the “Story of the Capital” 
exhibition. However there is an increase in visitors numbers compared to 2015. Currently we 
have no method to record the number of visitors to the Rotunda.  We are working on putting 
a system in place. 
 
 

2017 Visitors numbers to 
Exhibition 

Number of Weddings Number of Events 

January 1251 1 9 

February 2474 9 4 

March 2212 8 4 

April 2856 9 5 

May 2829 11 7 

June 1867 11 8 

TOTAL 13489 49  37 

 
 
From 23rd June to 22nd December there are 149 working days.  
 
To date we have 81 weddings pre -booked. There are also a lot of events booked in the 
Rotunda and the exhibition area. The venue is becoming increasingly popular for weddings 
and corporate events, nevertheless we are mindful of the noise level at some events and 
endeavour to ensure the events don’t clash with any pre booked meetings in the Council 
Chamber or the Richard O’Carroll Room. We are currently conducting a review of the City 
Hall Exhibition and Rotunda area. 
 
Future Events    
We will be organising a programme of events to coincide with; 
 

 National Heritage Week (19th – 27th August) 

 Culture Night 22nd September 
 
In addition to this we will run a series of lunch time lectures every Tuesday in October. 
 
 
Contact:    Jackie O Reilly, 

       Administrative Officer 
       PH: 2227675 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 131



INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS  
 

Good Citizen Awards 
Cllr. Freehill requested an outline of the plan for the 2018 Good Citizens Awards  
  
Action: To be brought to the next SPC meeting. 
  
At the SPC meeting in August 2015, it was proposed by Cllr. Mary Freehill and  agreed to 
establish a new Dublin City Volunteer Awards Scheme to recognise the contributions of 
volunteers to the quality of life in communities throughout Dublin City.  Due to the range of 
volunteer awards schemes already operating in the city, and in order to differentiate them, it 
was decided to call them The Dublin City Good Citizen Awards. 
 
Nominations were invited for awards in the following categories: 
 

 Social inclusion 

 Age friendly 

 Community & neighbourhood 

 Sports & recreation 

 Arts & culture 

 Children & youth 

 New communities 

 Disability 

 Lifetime volunteer 
 
178 nominations were received and an independent adjudication panel was appointed to 
assess and shortlist them under the following criteria: 
 

 Contribution to the overall community 

 Future benefit to the community 

 Length of service to voluntary work 

 Level of individual commitment 

 Ability to mobilise and motivate others to participate in volunteering 
 
A shortlist of 50 was compiled from which nine were selected and the  awards were 
presented  at a ceremony in the Round Room of the Mansion House in May 2016. 
 
In the context of other volunteer awards schemes operating in Dublin City which include 
Foróige Youth Citizenship Awards,  City of Dublin Youth Service Board Volunteer 
Achievement Award, Volunteer Ireland Awards, Dublin City Neighbourhood Awards, the 
Liberties Awards recognising excellence in the community  and the  Lord Mayor’s Awards 
which are presented to individuals and groups to mark their contribution to Dublin society, 
the Social Inclusion Unit would be keen to hear the members views on whether they feel the  
Good Citizen Awards meet an unmet need and whether they should continue in their present 
format or be incorporated into the Lord Mayor’s Awards.  This matter may best be dealt with 
at the Protocol Committee. 
 
Lets Walk & Talk 
Lets Walk & Talk summer series going very well.  City centre walks average 100+ 
participants.  Outside the city averaging 30 to 40.  We are working on doing some with 
migrants from Dublin City Intercultural Language Centre.  The Autumn series is currently 
being prepared. 
 
 

Page 132



Find Your Way – Migrant Directory 
We were unsuccessful in our application for a grant from Dept. of Justice to update the 
directory.  However we are collaborating with the Library Service and Dublin.ie to produce an 
on-line directory. 
 
Junior Achievement Programme 
Junior Achievement Ireland celebrates its 20th anniversary in Ireland this year.  It is said to 
be the largest non-profit organisation in the country recruiting, training and supporting 
volunteers from business to facilitate in-classroom programmes covering themes such as 
employability, financial literacy, STEM subjects, entrepreneurship.  Last year more than 
63,000 students took part.  Dublin City Council provides some small financial support but 
also provides volunteers.  The following personnel are coming to the end of their 
volunteering: 
 
Paul Keyes  Economics of Staying in School Grange Community College 2

nd
 Year 

Felicity Byrne  Our City   Harolds Cross NS  3
rd

 Class 
Christopher Donegan Our City   Scoil Una Naofa  3

rd
 class 

Roberta Mastrogregori Our Families   Sacred Heart NS  1
st
 class 

Liz Hartigan  Success Skills   St. Josephs CBS Fairview 4
th
 year  

 
Dublin City Intercultural Language Service 
Due to the success of the Dublin City Intercultural Language Service currently operating 
from Ballybough Sports Centre, and due to the Service winning a Social Innovation Ireland 
award which will provide additional funding, we are looking at running a second such service 
in West Dublin from September. 
 
Dublin City Interfaith Charter 
It is intended to install a banner on the front façade of the Civic Offices to help raise 
awareness and understanding of the diversity of Faith in Dublin City by promoting the Dublin 
City Interfaith Charter which the Lord Mayor launched last December and which is signed 
by representatives (no. 18) of the Dublin City Interfaith Forum.  The Charter deals with 
issues including religious freedom, inter-faith dialogue and the promotion of religious 
diversity in the city.   The Forum will agree a schedule of projects and programmes in 
partnership with Dublin City Council to further its aims and provide the platform for educating 
and encouraging people of different faiths to dialogue and act together in challenging all 
forms of injustice and discrimination; enable faith communities to develop better 
understanding, relationships of deeper respect and acceptance of each other. 
 
Immigrant Council of Ireland 
We are collaborating with the Immigrant Council of Ireland on their national anti-racism 
campaign with public transport providers in August.  We also intend to carry out a voter 
registration campaign with them during Social Inclusion Week. 
 
Symposium – Refugee Stories of Faith and Hope 
We are collaborating with the Dublin City Interfaith Forum and the Irish Refugee Council to 
stage a symposium in the Wood Quay Venue on 20th June and a photographic display in the 
Atrium, Civic Offices. 
 
Social Inclusion Week 
We are working on putting together a programme of activities to highlight the work of Dublin 
City Council in the area of social inclusion.  Events will run from 17th September onwards. 
 
Contact: Mary Foley, Senior Executive Officer 
Email:  mary.foley@dublincity.ie 
Tel:  2225317 

Page 133

mailto:mary.foley@dublincity.ie




 

 

 

 
Report to Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC 

 
10th July 2017 

 
Item No. 10 

 

 
Arts, Culture and Recreation Strategic Policy Committee 

 
Minutes of meeting of Commemorations Committee - Fochoiste na gCuimhneachán 

 
Wednesday 22nd March 2017 at 2.00pm 

Richard O’Carroll Room, City Hall 
 

Councillors/Members Present Officials Present 

Cllr Cieran Perry (in the Chair) 
Cllr Nial Ring 
Cllr Pat McCartan 
Cllr Micheal MacDonncha 

Brendan Teeling, Deputy City Librarian 
Tara Doyle, Dublin City Public Libraries 
 

 
1. Apologies: Cllr Vincent Jackson, Cllr Mary Freehill, Cllr John Lyons Margaret Hayes   

 
2. Minutes of the meeting of 18th January 2017 approved.  

 
3. Matters arising: 

a. St. Patrick’s Day Festival – Cllr Perry expressed disappointment at lack of 
commemorations theme in the St Patrick’s Festival parade 2016 and would 
like an opportunity to discuss future Festivals with the organisers. 
Management noted that, as per minutes of 18th January, the CEO of the 
Festival suggested that she would invite members of the SPC and 
Commemorations Committee to a briefing on the Festival. Management will 
progress. 

b. Review of costs of poster and badges of DCC 1916 plaques: Committee 
decided not to proceed with production of these but may produce a badge for 
Boland’s Mills 1916 garrison plaque.  

c. Consultation on draft commemorations programme: it was agreed that a 
meeting would be arranged in April to facilitate a consultation among 
members about the commemorations programme, the meeting to include an 
overview from one of the historians-in-residence. B Teeling noted that the 
programme had been tabled as part of the budget process for 2017. 
 

4. Correspondence    -    
 

5. Commemorations programme 2017.  
a. B. Teeling reported that the form for 2017 Decade of Commemorations grants 

is now available online at dublincity.ie  
b. B. Teeling reported that the programme for the lunch time lecture series in 

City Hall has been published and is on the theme 'The Great War: 
Remembrance and Commemoration' to coincide with the Assembly Memorial 
Chairs travelling exhibition in City Hall in April.  

c. Consultation process – see 3c above   

Page 135



 

6. Historians-in-Residence Programme 
 
T.Doyle reported that 66 applications were received for historian-in-residence 
programme. 18 people were interviewed and 12 have been put on a panel from which 
posts will be offered. 6 people have been offered and have accepted the positions 
subject to satisfactory references, qualifications and Garda vetting with start dates 
expected for April. Officials will allocate the historians to each area in DCC and will 
arrange for the relevant historians to make a presentation to the Area Committees.  
  

7. Motion submitted by Cllrs. Ring and Perry: 

That this committee requests the Chief Executive to make whatever arrangements are 
necessary to ensure that the Round Room of the Mansion House is block booked for 
use by Dublin City Council for a period of 16 days in and around 21st January 2019 in 
order to facilitate centenary commemorations/celebrations of the First Dail being 
organised by various groups. Apart from re-enactments etc. the facility should also be 
used for exhibitions etc. to attract schools, history groups and other interested parties 
and DCC should also provide funding for the Round Room to be transformed into the 
First Dail for the period in question. 
 

B. Teeling reported that the Houses of the Oireachtas have booked the Round Room for the 
100th anniversary of the first Dail in 2019 and DCC officials are due to attend a meeting soon 
with them and the company that runs the Round Room.  Cllr MacDonncha raised the 
problem of access to the Round Room for Mansion House tours and has brought this to the 
attention of the Protocol Committee.  

8. A.O.B.  
 
B.Teeling reported that: 
 

a. DCC held a consultation in March as part of the Creative Ireland legacy project. 
DCC will participate in the Cruinniu event on Easter Monday,  

b. One City One Book Festival was launched on 22nd March by the Lord Mayor. 
Echoland by Joe Joyce is the featured book, 

c. The 2017 Dublin Festival of History will take place in Autumn with a living 
history day for families in Richmond Barracks on 7th October.  
 

9. Date of next meeting: 26th April 2017 at 2pm.  

   

 
 
 
 

Page 136



1 
 

 

 

 

Report to Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC 

 

10th July 2017 

 
Item No. 11 

 

 
Commemorative Naming Committee 

 Minutes of Meeting held on 22nd March 2017 
3.00 p.m. Richard O’Carroll Room, City Hall  

 
Attendance 

 
Members:      Officials Present: 

Cllr Micheál MacDonncha (Chair)   Brendan Teeling, Deputy City Librarian 

Cllr Nial Ring      Ruairi O’Cuiv, Public Art Manager 

Cllr Ciaran Perry     Jackie O’Reilly, Administrative Officer 

Cllr Paddy McCartan     Paula Ebbs, Senior Staff Officer 

Cllr Séamas McGrattan    Tara Doyle, Senior Librarian 

       Gabrielle McClelland, Staff Officer 

      

Apologies:       

Cllr Mary Freehill; Margaret Hayes    

  

1. Minutes of Meeting held on 18th January 2017 

Action: Agreed 

 

2. Matters arising  

 No matters arising. 

 

3. Election of Chairperson  

 

 It was agreed that the election of a Chairperson will take place at the next meeting. 

 Action: Put on next Agenda 

 

4. Review of Policy Document  

 Following on from the objections in relation to the Frank Flood Bridge, management 

 informed members that item 11 of the Policy Document (Public Consultation) was re-

 visited.  After a discussion it was decided to insert the following wording:- 

 

 “The Commemorative Naming Committee will seek comment on proposals for the 

 naming of major infrastructure / monuments / statues via the Area Offices / Area 

 Committees, and may engage public comment if deemed necessary.”  

 

 Action: Agreed 

Page 137



2 
 

 Management also informed members that a minor addition was inserted into item 22 

 of the Policy Document (Appeals) which now reads:- 

 

 “Appeals will be considered only where a claim is made, on the official form, that the 

 Commemorative Naming Committee’s consideration of a proposal was procedurally 

 unfair, unreasonable or inadequate”. 

 Action: Agreed.  Appeals form to be drafted. 

 

 A discussion took place regarding item 16.4 of the Policy Document –  

 “An individual can only be commemorated with one piece of infrastructure”. 

 

 Members felt that this item was not necessary as they would be aware not to over-

 commemorate any one individual. 

 Action: Remove item 16.4 from the Policy Document. 

 

 Members requested clarity on item 17.1 of the Policy Document regarding the Arts 

 and Cultural Advisory Group’s role on proposals for monuments.  The following 

 wording was agreed:- 

 

 “All proposals for monuments recommended by the Commemorative Naming 

 Committee will be referred to the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group for consideration 

 and recommendation on their artistic merit and technical feasibility”. 

 Action:  Agreed.  Circulate all changes to the Policy Document to members.  This 

 revised Document will now go to the Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC for 

 recommendation to go to the full City Council for approval. 

  

5. Online Application  

 

 Members were updated on progress of the online application.  Management are 

 working with graphic designers and our IS department to progress. 

 

 Action: Keep members informed. 

 

6. Naming and Numbering Document  

 

 Members were informed the Naming and Numbering of Streets document is currently 

 under review and is due to be signed off shortly. 

 

 Action:  Circulate the renaming document to members.  Circulate naming document 

 to members as soon as it is signed off. 

   

7. Plaques/Monuments/Infrastructure Proposals  

 

o Naming Drumcondra Bridge “The Frank Flood Bridge” – Update  

A report on correspondence/communications received from elected 

representatives and local residents who are unhappy with the naming process 

was tabled. 

 

Page 138



3 
 

 Action: Proceed.  Liaise with Roads and Traffic Department.  Draft wording to  

   include others who were executed along with Frank Flood.  Report back to 

  next meeting. 

 

o Liam Mellows Memorial – Update 

   

  The Chair informed members that he was speaking to G. Buckley and stated 

  the application is almost complete.  

 

  Action:  Keep members updated. 

  

o Welsh Chapel Plaque – Update  

 

  Management informed members that a Conservation Officer visited the site of 

  the Welsh Chapel to inspect, photograph and provide a recommendation as 

  to whether it would be a candidate for a Section 59 notice.  Section 59 is a 

  mechanism whereby the Planning authority can serve a notice (under Section 

  59 of the Planning and Development Act 2000) on owners where a ‘protected 

  structure’ is becoming endangered due to lack of maintenance and repair.  

  She has now informed us that in her opinion the site is not considered  

  endangered and therefore a Section 59 Endangerment Notice would not be 

  applicable at this point.  

 

  Action:  Continue to pursue the owners of the building and keep members 

  informed.  

 

o Sean McLoughlin Plaque – Update  

 

  Management informed members that the unveiling for this plaque will take 

  place on Wednesday 3rd May 2017 at approx. 7.00 p.m.at No. 5 North King 

  Street, Dublin 7. 

 

  Action:  Send members invitations when available 

 

8. A.O.B.  

 

 Members were informed that an application for a plaque to commemorate Michael 

 Mallin was received. 

 

 Action: Bring application to next meeting, if all documentation has been submitted. 

 

 Next meeting – To be confirmed 

 

        ______________________  

        Cllr. Micheál MacDonncha 

 

        Dated: _________________  

 

Page 139





 

 

 

Report to Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC 

 

10th July 2017 

 
Item No. 12 

 

 
Arts and Cultural Advisory Group 

 Minutes of Meeting held on Wednesday 5th April 2017,  
          9.30 a.m. Members Room, City Hall  

 
Attendance 

 
Present:  Cllr Áine Clancy (Chair), Cllr John Lyons, Ray Yeates, Hugh Fahey, Róisín 
Kennedy, Shane de Blacam, Ruairí Ó Cuív, Brendan Teeling, Charles Duggan  
 
Apologies: Cllr Claire Byrne, Willie White, Simon O’Connor, Elaina Ryan, Barbara Dawson  
 
In Attendance: Vera Smyth 
 

1. Minutes of previous meeting held on 1st February 2017 
The minutes were approved, proposed by Ruairí Ó Cuív, seconded by Róisín Kennedy.  
 
2. Matters Arising 
No matters arising. 
 
3. City Arts Officer Report 
The City Arts Officer presented the report on the Arts Office activities. The events include 

MusicTown 2017, an initiative of Dublin City Arts Office, programmed through a curated 

open call process and by Aiken Promotions, running from 7-17 April; IAWATST – Interesting 

and Weird At the Same Time, a collaborative exhibition curated by the children of Central 

Model Senior School, was running February 17 - March 26 2017 together with Astronomical 

Mashup by Lucy McKenna.  

 

A forthcoming exhibition Trying to behave, a solo show by artist Theresa Nanigian, will be 

running from the 6th April to 28th May 2017. The exhibition will consist of photographs taken 

at the Royal Opera House, a short video projection of dancers from the Macushla Dance 

Club at DanceHouse, Dublin, as well as responses to the Twenty Statements self-concept 

survey. The exhibition is partially funded by the Arts Council as part of the Touring and 

Dissemination of Work Scheme award. 

 

The City Arts Officer also reported on Erasmus+ KA2 project with European partner 

countries. The project is designed to facilitate Learning with Visual Arts in Schools and in 

Cultural Institutions with a remit for arts education. 

 

The Arts Office is supporting Neighbourhood Arts Partnership groups as part of the pilot 

initiative by offering additional support. Dublin’s Culture Connects project includes partnering 

with Ballyfermot Community Civic Centre on The Passion Project. 

Page 141



There is also a call out to councillors and community groups to develop a 2017 National 

Neighbourhood engagement programme. The Cultural Audit is currently underway and an 

online “map” of city’s culture will be developed. A seminar on marketing for community 

organisations will take place on Tuesday 9 May 2017 as part of Dublin's Culture Connects' 

partnerships with Business to Arts on the Fundraising Fellowship Dublin programme. 

 

4. Public Art Report 
 
Nomination for a new External Public Art Expert  
As agreed at the last meeting of the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group, Visual Artists Ireland 

were invited to nominate two artists (one female one male). They are to revert with these 

names.        

 
Ongoing Commissions 

The Public Art Manager presented his report with updates on ongoing commissions.   

 

Proposals for Permanent Art 

 
Statue of Liam Mellows  
The proposal to erect a statue of Liam Mellows made by the Liam Mellow Memorial 

Committee (a voluntary group based in Finglas) was approved by the Commemorative 

Naming Committee and presented to the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group in November 

2016 as per the Commemorative Naming Policy and the DCC Public Art Policy, 2009.  The 

Advisory Group considered the matter but sought further information including:  

 Detailed visualisations or model of the statue. 

 C.V. of the artist, Willie Malone and three relevant examples of previous statues the 

artist himself has sculpted. 

 Technical details including structure, foundations and care and maintenance of the 

work.  

 Detailed breakdown of costs including, artists fees, bronze casting, stone plinth, 

foundations, transport, installation, costs of plaque, technicians, etc.   

 
Supplementary Information 
The Group discussed the supplementary material provided by the Liam Mellow Memorial 

Committee and the issues of wishing to support the work of voluntary local groups while also 

maintaining quality appropriate to Dublin City Council including the long-term issues.  It was 

agreed that commissioning permanent artworks and statues including financing, design, 

fabrication and installation, is a particularly challenging and complex process.  While the 

intentions of this voluntary group are those of total commitment and belief, there are still a 

number of issues which are of concern as follows:   

 
Policy for the Decade of Commemorations 
The Group discussed concerns about how commissioning a statue dedicated to one person 

killed in the Irish Civil War could impact on how Dublin City Council could be perceived in the 

wider context of the Decade of Commemorations. The Group understands the intentions of 

the proposal as put forward by the Liam Mellow Memorial Committee in the context of the 

park and streets in Finglas being named after historic figures from the Easter Rising, War of 

Independence and Civil War. 

Page 142



However, in taking a wider perspective of the city, the Group suggested that a more inclusive 

approach to these historic events would be appropriate.  Therefore, it advises that the statue 

should not be commissioned until Dublin City Council has had an opportunity to consider 

how the War of Independence and Civic War are to be commemorated.  In this context the 

Group understands that the Government’s Advisory Group for the Decade of 

Commemorations is preparing a policy document on the commemoration of these events.    

 
Recommendations for the Commissioning Process  
 
There are a number of complex issues which will have to be resolved if this statue is to be 

commissioned, especially in the context that it is proposed for Dublin City Council property.   

 If this proposal is to proceed, some mechanism should be devised whereby Dublin 

City Council has direct involvement in every step of the process to devise, curate and 

sign off on this statue before it is commissioned.  

 Planning Permission will have to be sought for the statue and plinth.  

 There are still concerns that adequate and satisfactory visualisations of the proposed 

statue have not been provided, as it is essential that Dublin City Council maintains a 

high quality of art in order to pay due respect to the subject (Liam Mellows) but also 

for maintenance of standards across the entire city.  There is no evidence of how a 

likeness of Liam Mellows will be achieved.   

 The total costs as provided for the entire memorial would seem very modest for a 

high quality life size statue on a stone plinth of this scale.   Therefore, further analysis 

is required.       

 While it is understandable that a community project is undertaken as a phased 

project, this is not appropriate for a City Council adopted project. It is essential that 

evidence of the funding be in place for the entire project, before it is permitted to go 

ahead.   

 The design and wording of texts for the plaques, etc, will have to be provided in Irish 

and English (as proposed by the Committee) and would have to be agreed and 

approved in writing by Dublin City Council.  

 The Arts and Cultural Advisory Group has already proposed that if commissioned 

Dublin City Council would take on care and maintenance of the memorial rather than 

the National Graves Association. Questions still arise about what level of costs and 

attention which would be required to maintain the statue and memorial.   

 
Care and Maintenance of Permanent Public Art 
 
Trace by Grace Weir  
This matter has been ongoing since the sculpture was removed in 2013, to allow for 

reconfiguration of the traffic junction at the north east corner of St Stephens Green. 

However, when contractors went on site at Gulliston Terrace, where the work was in 

storage, to do a ‘dry run’ to assemble the various elements of the sculpture they discovered 

that four of the ‘blocks’ which made the sculpture were missing. The Public Art Manager 

advised the artist who is considering what to do about the matter.  

 

 

 

 

Page 143



Recommendation:  
A policy on storage of public art needs to be adopted. Public Art Manager to report back on 

this matter.  

 
5. Dublin Heritage Projects 2017 
Charles Duggan, Heritage Officer, made a presentation on Dublin Heritage Projects 2017. It 

covered the many projects that have been carried out since 2011, such as More than 

Concrete Blocks, Decorative Plasterwork, Built to Last – Increasing Efficiency in pre 1945 

buildings, Medieval Dublin on-line project, a free on-line resource for schools.     

  
6. Dublin City libraries report 
Deputy City Librarian reported on Dublin: One City One Book 2017 - Echoland by Joe Joyce, 

Pilot national delivery Service for Inter-Library Loans, Dublin City Creative Ireland workshop 

in early May, the Home Energy Saving Kits are now available to borrow in all Dublin City 

branch libraries, proposed New City Library, Parnell Square, refurbishment of Kevin Street 

Library, commemorations programme 2017 – historians-in-residence.  

 

At the request of the Minister for Arts, Heritage Regional, Rural and Gaeltacht Affairs and 

under the Government’s national Creative Ireland plan, a City Council Creative Ireland Team 

has been convened. The Team is led by City Librarian, Margaret Hayes and the members 

include staff from the Arts Office, the Heritage Office, Archaeology, the Hugh Lane, Council 

Events and planning.  

 

Dublin City Libraries are delivering two new initiatives Readers in Residence & Coder Dojo 

under the Dublin North East Inner City Project, aimed at providing programmes of reading 

for pleasure in primary schools and youth clubs, and digital skills to children and young 

people of the North East Inner City area. Both are being managed by a dedicated project 

librarian based in Charleville Mall library. 

 
7. Dublin City Gallery the Hugh Lane 

Report noted.  
 
8. A.O.B.  

 Next meeting – Thursday the 25th of May at 9.30.  
 

 
 

 

Page 144



 

 

 

 

REPORT TO ARTS, CULTURE AND RECREATION SPC 

 

10TH
 JULY 2017 

 
Item No. 13 

 

 

BREVIATE OF DRAFT MINUTES OF THE  Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Partnership Advisory 

Board Meeting  

Monday 15th May 2017 @ 4.45pm, Room 19, Floor 3, Block 4, Civic Offices, Wood Quay, 

D8 

ITEM SUMMARY ACTION BY TIMELINE 

FC welcomed everyone to the meeting 

2. Minutes 
of  
previous 
meeting 

 Proposed by SMcN, Seconded by RH; 
Agreed. 

  

3. Matters 
Arising 

 RH enquired if there was any update on 
possible sponsorship for ‘Parklives’. AM 
explained that the structure of the 
programme is still undefined and as 
such, we would need to wait until we 
have more of a package to offer before 
approaching potential sponsors.  
*Parklives has now been renamed 
‘Green Scene’ 
 

 RH asked if there was an update on the 
proposed National Walking Day. RT 
explained that it’s still in its infancy and 
his department are looking at ways to 
get this included as core funding. 
 

 SMcN advised everyone that a 
substantial number of third level sports 
students are available for 
internships/work placements. This 
could greatly assist in the delivery of 
core/local programmes and also any 
one-off/big ticket events. If anyone is 
interested Student Sport Ireland is 
holding its annual networking event at 
the Templepatrick Hotel and Country 
Club from Wednesday 24 May to Friday 
26 May. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 145



 

 
4. NEIC 

 

 
 Bruce McDevitt, Senior Sports 

Development Officer, presented an 
update on the ongoing North East Inner 
City Project and responded to some 
questions from the board. 
 

 Some points to note:  
 

- The newly refurbished Pigeon 
House building in Ballybough has 
been designated for boxing only. 
However, it is not for exclusive use 
by Ballybough Boxing Club and will 
also be available to DCSWP Sports 
Officers & our co-funded boxing 
officers. 
 

- RF & RH praised BMcD on the great 
amount of work done in a short 
time and enquired about the 
Mulvey Report i.e. is there a similar 
hard deadline for implementation 
of the recommendations laid out? 
BMcD indicated that there are no 
specifics at present but €5 million 
has been committed. There is also 
a discretionary fund of 50k for 
Women in Sport. SMcN advised 
that DIT have a model for this that 
could easily be replicated and will 
speak to BMcD about this. 
 

- In response to some more 
questions, BMcD went on to 
explain that although it will be 
difficult to measure success in the 
medium term (aside from 
new/refurbished facilities etc…), it 
is important that we look to 
empower community leaders and 
work closely with school teachers 
and corporate bodies local to the 
area in order to bring about real 
embedded cultural change. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
5. Terms of 
Reference 

 
 In respect of the latest draft, consensus 

was reached on the small number of 
issues that were still under 
consideration. The Terms of Reference 
are now agreed & finalised. 

 

 

 

 

Page 146



 

 
6. Manager 
Update 

 

 AM updated the board on the strategy 
launch, strategy progress report, core 
programme workshops and the 
implementation of the new 
management structure. Board 
Members were also notified of 
upcoming partnership events and 
should contact AM directly if they wish 
to attend any. This can easily be 
facilitated. 

 
Board members to 
contact AM directly 

if they wish to 
attend any 

upcoming events 

 
As required 

 

 

7. Beat the 
Street 

 Helena McColgan, Dublin Engagement 
Manager for Beat the Street, presented 
to the Board. 
 

 Some points to note:  
- Runs from 13th September to 1st 

November 
- Covers Dublin 8, 10 & 12. Beat 

boxes ½ mile apart 
- Evidence based 
- For all ages 
- Prizes are all geared towards 

further promoting physical activity 
- Bonus points can be offered on 

certain beat boxes as a way of 
driving people towards a certain 
area to promote an event or 
increase awareness of underused 
facilities etc…  

- Rolled out via schools initially, then 
through community engagement 

- Game has in-built safeguards 
against cheating 

- All data will go to the funding body 
 

 It is hoped that the fact it is new, 
innovative & has already been very 
successfully deployed in cities across 
the UK will mean it has the potential to 
make a big impact in the city. 

 
 RT informed the Board that the data 

gleamed from the game will likely be 
very valuable and will help inform any 
future decisions on planning of 
programmes, services & facilities. RT 
also offered to help send out 
information to schools via the Active 
School Newsletter if needed. 

 

  

 
 

 
 

Page 147



 

 
9. A.O.B.  

 FC thanked everyone for their 
attendance and confirmed the next 
meeting will take place on Monday, 
July 17th at 4.45pm. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Attendees: Fiona Coghlan, Antonia Martin, Declan Wallace, Shauna McIntyre, Jim Beggan, Rob 

Hartnett, Richard Fahey, Maurice Ahern, John Costello, Sinead McNulty, Ronan Toomey, Alan 

Morrin 

Apologies: James Galvin, Anne Rooney, Sarah Keane, Cllr. Seamas McGrattan, Mick Dawson 

Minutes by: Alan Morrin 

 

Page 148



Dublin City Council – Commemorations Committee – Draft Minutes 17
th
 May 2017, p.1 

 

 

 

 

Report to Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC 
 

10th July 2017 
 

Item No. 14 

 
 

Breviate of draft Minutes of meeting of Commemorations Committee - Fochoiste na 
gCuimhneachán 

 
Wednesday 17th May 2017 at 2.00pm 

Richard O’Carroll Room, City Hall 
 

1. Minutes of the meeting of 22nd March: approved.  
 

2. Matters arising: there were no matters arising. 
 

3. Correspondence: none. 
 

4. Commemorations programme 2017.  

T Doyle reported that a consultation meeting was held with the Committee on 9th May 
2017 with “Of Capital Importance” presentation by Historians-in-Residence Dr Darragh 
Gannon and Maeve Casserly, highlighting historic anniversaries from 2017-19. The 
slides were tabled. It was reported that the Decade of Commemorations grants fund of 
€75,000 will be further promoted via the Historians-in-Residence.  

5. Historians-in-Residence programme 
 
T.  Doyle reported that six historians started work at the end of April, on a part-time 
basis, for a nine month period. They are:  

Central Area Dr Darragh Gannon 

North West Area Donal Fallon 

North Central Area Cormac Moore 

South East Area Maeve Casserly 

South Central Area Cathy Scuffil  

Dublin City Library and Archive  Dr Brian Hanley  

 

To start, they will be delivering a three-part lecture series in libraries in June on the Irish 
Revolution 1917-23. 

  
6. Kathleen Clarke portrait  

B Teeling reported on a motion adopted by the Protocol Committee in February 2017:  

“Inspired by the Accenture Ireland #WomenonWalls project which seeks to address the 
lack of portraits of historical female leaders in Ireland. Dublin City Council will seek 
sponsorship for and commission a portrait of the first female Lord Mayor of Dublin 
Kathleen Clarke framed to a size and scale that will allow it to replace one of the 
current portraits that hang in the Council Chamber alongside that of Daniel O'Connell.” 

Page 149



Dublin City Council – Commemorations Committee – Draft Minutes 17
th
 May 2017, p.2 

 

The Committee endorsed the motion: B. Teeling will investigate costs and process and 
report back.  
 

7. A.O.B.  

It was reported that the City Archives and Royal Dublin Fusiliers Association Messines 
Peace Park seminar will take place on Friday afternoon 19th May in Council Chamber, City 
Hall. 

B.Teeling reported that Expert Advisory Group for Decade of Centenaries is preparing a 
policy on the commemoration of the War of Independence which is expected to go to 
Cabinet soon.  

8. Date of next meeting: 19th September 2017 at 2pm.  

   

Councillors/Members Present Officials Present 

Cllr Vincent Jackson (Chair) 
Cllr Cieran Perry 
Cllr Nial Ring 

Brendan Teeling, Deputy City Librarian 
Margaret Hayes, Dublin City Historian  
Tara Doyle, Dublin City Public Libraries 
 

 

Apologies - Cllr Paddy MacCartan 

Also in attendance: Cormac Moore, Historian-in-Residence, North Central area; Dr Darragh 
Gannon, Historian-in-Residence, Central area. 

 

Page 150



1 
 

 

 

 

Report to Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC 
 

10th July 2017 
 

Item No. 15 
 

 

Commemorative Naming Committee 
Breviate of Draft Minutes of Meeting held on 17th May 2017 

3.00 p.m. Richard O’Carroll Room, City Hall  
  

1. Minutes of Meeting held on 22nd March 2017 

Action: Agreed 

 

2. Matters arising  

 Management circulated a document excerpt from the City Development Plan 

 regarding Naming of Residential Developments.  

 

 Cllr Flynn informed the Committee that he had submitted a question to the 

 Chief Executive regarding this issue, i.e. that the naming of new developments / 

 streets should be part of the planning application process. He asked that this 

 Committee  endorse it. 

 

 Cllr MacDonncha responded that we would need to check with the Planning Dept 

 and enquire if legislation would need to be changed in order to do this. 

 

 A number of queries including the use of the Irish language, policy on changing a 

 name, setting up a sub-committee to oversee processes was discussed. 

 

 Action: Contact Planning and Heritage and report back to Committee 

 

3. Election of Chairperson  

 Cllr Nial Ring proposed Cllr Ciaran Perry as Chairperson and Cllr Séamas 

 McGrattan seconded the proposal. There were no other nominations and Cllr Perry `

 was elected as Chairperson. 

 

 Action:  Cllr Ciaran Perry will take the role of Chairperson at the next meeting.  

 

4. Review of Policy Document  

 Management informed members that this Policy Document was brought to the Arts, 

 Culture and Recreation SPC on Monday 8th May 2017.  

 

Members of the SPC made a slight amendment to the document.  Under Public 

Consultation (Section 11) it now reads – “The Commemorative Naming committee 

will seek comment on proposals for the naming of major infrastructure / monuments / 

statues via the Area Offices /  Area Committees, and will engage public comment”. 

Page 151



2 
 

 Action: The Policy Document will be brought to the June City Council meeting for 

 adoption. 

 

5. Draft Appeals Form 

 

 Action: Agreed. 

   

6. Plaques/Monuments/Infrastructure Proposals  

 

o Naming Drumcondra Bridge “The Frank Flood Bridge” – Update  

 

 Action:  It was agreed to go through the process of seeking consent from living  

 descendants of the other men who were executed along with Frank Flood in  

 order to commemorate them.  Check names and number of men executed. 

 Keep members updated. 

 

o Liam Mellows Memorial – Update 

   

  This project was discussed at the Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC on  

  Monday 8th May 2017 under the Breviate of the Arts and Cultural Advisory 

  Group  (ACAG) meeting dated 5th April 2017.  It was agreed Cllr MacDonncha 

  meet with the Chair of ACAG, Cllr Aine Clancy, Ray Yeates, City Arts Officer 

  and Ruairi O’Cuiv, Public Arts Manager to progress this project. 

 

  Action: Bring back to this Committee when design is complete. 

  

o Michael Mallin Plaque – Application 

 

  This application was deemed invalid as the proposed wording stated that  

  Michael Mallin lived at the address where the plaque was to be erected.  It 

  was discovered that Michael Mallin never lived at this residence. 

 

  Action: Inform proposer that the application was deemed invalid. 

  

7.  A.O.B.  

 

 Management informed members of three proposals for plaques.   

(1) Nell Humphreys, Irish revolutionary and Cumann na mBan leader 

(2) Anno O’Rahilly, Irish revolutionary and Cumann na mBan member 

(3) George, Lily and Lolly Yeats whose Cuala Industries was based at 133 Lr. 

Baggot Street. 

 

 Action:  Agreed in principal.  Bring official applications to the next meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 152



3 
 

Attendance 

Members:      Officials Present: 

Cllr Micheál MacDonncha (Chair)   Margaret Hayes, Dublin City Librarian 

Cllr Nial Ring      Brendan Teeling, Deputy City Librarian 

Cllr Ciaran Perry     Ruairi O’Cuiv, Public Art Manager 

Cllr Séamas McGrattan    Jackie O’Reilly, Administrative Officer 

       Paula Ebbs, Senior Staff Officer 

       Tara Doyle, Senior Librarian 

 

Apologies:      Other Councillors present: 

Cllr Paddy McCartan     Cllr Mannix Flynn 

Cllr Frank Kennedy 

  

Next meeting –  Tuesday 19th September 2017 

 

        ______________________  

        Cllr. Micheál MacDonncha 

 

        Dated: _________________  

 

Page 153





1 
 

 

 

 

Report to Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC 

10th July 2017 

Item No. 16 

 

 
Arts and Cultural Advisory Group 

Breviate of Draft Minutes of Meeting held on Wednesday  
28th June 2017, 9.30 a.m., Members Room, City Hall 

 
1. Minutes of previous meeting held on 5th April 2017 
The minutes were approved, proposed by Shane de Blacam, seconded by Ruairí Ó Cuív  
 
2. Matters Arising 
No matters arising. 
 
3. Luke Kelly Working Group Report 
The City Arts Officer presented a summary of the findings of the Luke Kelly Working 
Group.  The Group met with Vera Klute, Gerry Hunt, John Coll, Patrick and John Kelly along 
with Des Geraghty.  A public consultation meeting was also held on the 13th June, 2017. 

 
The recommendations of the Luke Kelly Working Group are that Dublin City Council 
commission the Luke Kelly Sculpture by Vera Klute as designed and proposed by her, to go 
along Royal Canal in the North Inner City Docklands and that the gift from Gerry Hunt of the 
statue of Luke Kelly by artist John Coll be accepted and placed in a suitable location in the 
south city centre. 

 
While there will likely be sensitivities around having two statues of the same person in the 
city,  it was emphasised that this should not establish precedence, this was found to be the 
best outcome in order to honour both DCC’s Public Art Policies and Procedures and the 
wishes of the Kelly family. 
 
4. City Arts Officer Report 
The City Arts Officer presented the report on the Arts Office activities. In addition, he outlined 
that The Treeline Project is underway with artists Oonagh Young and Mary Cremin. They 
received a grant from the Arts Council for €150,000 for the project which includes planting 18 
trees in the Foley Street area and having a digital ticker tape of the text of Ulysses.  The City 
Arts Officer has been providing support for the project and is also liaising with other sections 
within Dublin City Council to endeavour to achieve as much as possible of the ambitions and 
intentions of the artist curators.  However the entirety of the project proposed to the Arts 
Council is unlikely to be achieved due to underestimation of the costs involved.  
 
There are ongoing meetings of the Working Group with the Department of Arts, The Arts 
Council DCC Planning and Development and the City arts office to attempt to address the 
deficit in artists workspaces in Dublin. Sites are being considered and feasibility studies of 
these sites will be required. 
 
Other events include International Literature Festival Dublin, which saw an increase of 83% 
in box office sales, running from 20-29 May; an application to Music Generation, a 
collaborative music education partnership with DIT, the NCH and RIAM which would provide 
funding up to €200,000 for a three-year period and aims to bridge the existing gaps in music 
education; MusicTown 2017, an initiative of Dublin City Arts Office, programmed through a 
curated open call process and by Aiken Promotions, running from 7-17 April; and the Arts, 
Education and Learning Policy which was passed in November 2016, the framework for 
which was presented at the Mansion House on 16th May 2017. 

Page 155



2 
 

 
The LAB exhibition Trying To Behave, a solo show by artist Theresa Nanigian, ran from the 
6th April to 28th May 2017. The exhibition consisted of photographs taken at the Royal Opera 
House, a short video projection of dancers from the Macushla Dance Club at DanceHouse, 
Dublin, as well as responses to the Twenty Statements self-concept survey. The exhibition 
was partially funded by the Arts Council as part of the Touring and Dissemination of Work 
Scheme award. There was also an accompanying panel discussion and advertisements 
were placed on JCDecaux boards in the city. 
 
5. Public Art Report 
 
Nomination for a new External Public Art Expert  
Visual Artists Ireland has nominated curator Maolíosa Boyle to the Arts and Cultural 
Advisory Group.  Maolíosa Boyle studied art and has had a noteworthy career in the visual 
arts.  She was appointed director of Rua Red in 2016 and previously was the Director of 
Void Contemporary Art Gallery in Derry.  The Group unanimously recommended her 
appointment as one of the three public art specialists on the Group.   
 
Talking Statues Dublin  
Fáilte Ireland has been working with Sing London, the developers of the Talking Statues 
projects in London, Manchester, Leeds and Chicago on a pilot scheme for Dublin, after 
approval by the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group and SPC for Arts, Culture and Recreation.   
Fáilte Ireland has liaised with the Arts Office in Dublin City Council regarding the 
development and rollout of the project.  The idea is that well known figures in the arts write 
an imaginary script of what a statue might say and that these are then voiced by well known 
actors.  These are then made accessible to the public on their mobile telephones, who after 
scanning a QR code or inputting a code will 'receive a call back from the statue’.  A sign at 
each statue indicates the Talking Statues throughout the city.  The following is the list of 
statues, scriptwriters and actors.  These include statues owned by Dublin City Council, 
National Gallery of Ireland, Trinity College Dublin, OPW, SIPTU and An Post.   
 

Statue Writer Actor 

George Bernard Shaw Arthur Matthews TBC 

Meeting Point Rachel Kilfeather Brenda Fricker 

James Joyce Roddy Doyle Gabriel Byrne 

Daniel O’Connell Paula Meehan Ruth Negga 

James Connolly Brendan O’Carroll Brendan O’Carroll 

Oscar Wilde John Banville Andrew Scott 

Wolf Tone Patrick McCabe Brendan Gleeson 

James Larkin Enda Walsh Stephen Rea 

Cú Chulainn Eoin Colfer TBC 

Oliver Goldsmith Competition Statue TBC 

Molly Malone  Competition Statue TBC 

 
One of the features of the Talking Statues projects in other cities has been to organise public 
competitions for a script.  Fáilte Ireland and Sing London propose that the statue of Molly 
Malone is the subject for one of two competitions in Dublin.  Fáilte Ireland will run the Talking 
Statues pilot project in Dublin for a year.  They intend to launch the project in August.   
 
The Arts and Cultural Advisory Group endorsed the Pilot Project and the idea of Molly 
Malone being one of the competition statues.  
 
Statue of Kevin Heffernan 
A staff member in Parks and Landscape Services who is working on the development of a 
garden at the start of Clonliffe Road proposed to include a statue of Kevin Heffernan.    

Page 156



3 
 

 
Recommendation  
The Group recommended not to commission the statue as under the Public Art Policy (2009) 
and the Commemorative Naming Policy (renewed 2017) individuals have to have been dead 
for more than 20 years before a statue of them is installed on Dublin City Council property.   
  
Care and Maintenance of Public Artworks 
Trace by Grace Weir 
The Public Art Manager presented a report on the history and issues relating to the 
dismantling of the sculpture Trace by Grace Weir from the corner of St Stephens Green / 
Merrion Row and placement in storage. It was agreed that in respect of the views of the 
artist, the sculpture should not be placed in the new proposed location at the corner of St 
Stephens Green and Kildare Street.  However, the Group recommended that the elements 
of the sculpture which remain, be placed in safe storage until a final decision is made on a 
decommissioning process.   
 
6. Dublin Culture Connects Report 
Iseult Byrne presented a report on Dublin Culture Connects 2017. It covered the many 
projects that are being carried out, including The National Neighbourhood, The Fundraising 
Fellowship Dublin, The Cultural Audit and Map, The EU Lab and the Culture Club.  
 
It was noted that Iseult and  the next Introduction to Marketing seminar will take place in the 
Wood Quay venue on 14th November from 6-9pm. This was found to be extremely useful to 
all who attended the May event. The finishing touches are being put to the forthcoming 
Guide to Marketing video, which will have a voiceover by Cllr. Rebecca Moynihan. 
 
7. Dublin City Gallery the Hugh Lane 
Report noted.  
 
8. Dublin City libraries report 
Deputy City Librarian reported on a number of events and initiatives being delivered by 
Dublin City Libraries, including the Summer Stars programme, the Historians in Residence 
programme and the Readers in Residence & Coder Dojo under the Dublin North East Inner 
City Project.  
 
It was noted that a revised Policy for Commemorative Naming of Infrastructure and the 
Provision of Monuments, Memorials and Plaques was adopted by the Council at its meeting 
of 12th June. Two sections related to the role of the Arts & Culture Advisory Committee: 
 

5. Public Art 
5.1 Dublin City Council values the contribution which permanent art can bring to 
enhancing the public realm. 
5.2 Proposals for statues and other permanent visual artworks are considered by the 
Arts and Cultural Advisory Group. 
 
17. Monuments 
A Monument is deemed to be a three-dimensional structure or a high and low relief, 
of architectural or sculptural design, erected to commemorate a person or event. 
17.1 All proposals for monuments recommended by the Commemorative Naming 
Committee will be referred to the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group for consideration 
and recommendation on their artistic merit and technical feasibility. 
17.2 A proposal for a monument will be referred to the Arts and Cultural Advisory 
Group if it is considered to be purely public art and therefore more appropriate to that 
Committee. 
 
 

Page 157



4 
 

The Deputy City Librarian recently attended a conference by the NCBI and the efforts of the 
Libraries to integrate more resources for the visually impaired were noted, as was the 
usefulness of the Borrowbox app. It is planned to invest in more digital books and Braille 
resources for the Libraries. 
 
9. A.O.B.  

 Next meeting – date T.B.C. 
 

Attendance: 
 

 Present: Cllr Áine Clancy (Chair), Ray Yeates, Hugh Fahey, Róisín Kennedy, Shane 
de Blacam, Ruairí Ó Cuív, Gerry Kerr, Brendan Teeling, Elaina Ryan, Iseult Byrne 

  

 Apologies: Cllr Claire Byrne, Willie White, Simon O’Connor, Barbara Dawson  

 In Attendance: Dolores Fogarty 

Page 158


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of meeting held on 8th May 2017
	2 Presentation on the National Children's Science Museum Project - Dr. Daniel O'Hare.
	3 Presentation on A Playful City - Aaron Copeland
	4 Report and Recommendations from the Luke Kelly Working Group - Ray Yeates, City Arts Officer
	5 Report on the delivery of cultural space in the City - GOAL 6 of the Local Economic and Community Plan 2016 - 2021 (LECP) - Ray Yeates, City Arts Officer
	6 Report on the Implementation of the Cultural Strategy - Ray Yeates, City Arts Officer
	7 Report on update of the George Bernard Shaw House - Brendan Teeling, Deputy City Librarian
	9 Management Update
	10 Approved Minutes of the Commemorations Sub Committee meeting held 22nd March 2017
	11 Approved Minutes of the Commemorative Naming Committee meeting held 22nd March 2017
	12 Approved Minutes of the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group meeting held 5th April 2017
	13 Breviate of Draft Minutes of Dublin City Sports and Wellbeing Partnership Advisory Board meeting held 15th May 2017
	14 Breviate of Draft Minutes of the Commemorations Sub Committee meeting held 17th May 2017
	15 Breviate of Draft Minutes of the Commemorative Naming Committee meeting held 17th May 2017
	16 Breviate of Draft Minutes of the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group meeting held 28th June 2017



